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FRESH & HEAL THY ENTERPRISES LTD . . 
VISION & MISSION 

To provide sufficient handJing & storage facilities for perishables in IndIa. with a view to 
reduce/control wastages ofperishable food products in India. 

Corporate Objectives 

• Eliminating wastage of perishable food prod",,!s by making available state of the art 
Cold supply Chain Infrastructure at reasonable cost in the country, thereby saving 
precious food products & foreign exchange for the country. 

* To be a customer focused~ pcrfonnance driven, result oriented organization, focused 
on providing value for money to its customers . 

.. To maximize produetive utilization of resources, deliver high quality services and to 
be recognized for setting the standards for exeellence. 

*To look constantly for new and better ways to provide innovative services. It will aim 
for customer convenience and satisfaction. learn from its competitors and cqflstantly 
strive for excellence. 

* To set measrnable performance goals to support the objectives and mission of the 
organization and work as a profcssional. competent and dedicated tcam for the 
organization to achieve exeellence in all areas ofbusiness and operations. 

* To follow highest standards of business ethics and add soeial value for the CO!lUl1unity 
at ~arge by discharging soeial obligations as a responsible corporate entity, 

* To maintain absolute integrity, honesty, transparency and fair-play in all it; official 
dealings· and strive to maintain high: standards of ethies. 
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FRESH &. HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED 

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of CONCOR) 

Chairman's Address 

Dear Shareholders, 

I have great pleasure in welcoming you to this Eleventh Annual General Meeting 

of your Company. The Audited Annual Accounts of the Company fbr the period 

ended 31" March, 2016, Directors' Report incorporating remarks of Statutory 

Auditor along-with replies thereto and Comments of Secretarial Auditor and 

Comptroller & Auditor General of India, Auditors' Report, have already been 

drculated to you and with your permission, I take them as read. 

Keeping in view the losses incurred by the Company year after year despite 

implementation of various strategic measures, it was agreed that (a) company 

will not do any purchase/procurement during the year; and (b) leasing model for 

CA (Controlled Atmosphere) chambers would be fbllowed for the year 2015-16. 

Further, Committee of Secreta~es (COS) in its meeting held on 13.07.2015 

recommended that Ministry of Railways (MoR) may consider the possibility of 

divesting the Company to the Private sector. However, HSIIDC in their letter in 

December, 2015 refused to transfer land lease arrangements on which the 

facility has been constructed to any private entity, thus making divestment not a 

feasible option. In view of such refusal by HSIIDC, various options like merger, 

closure etc., are being examined fbr restructuring of your company. 
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During 2015-16, your Company sold last year's apple stock of 3825 MT and 
, 

rented out 37 Chambers to various parties/leading apple business players, 

Your Company could achieve a turnover of Rs. 23.61 Crore in FlY 2015-16 

against Rs. 32.14 Crore in the previous year, registering a decline of 26.54% 

appx. Accumulated losses of company stood at Rs. 140.39 Cr. as on 31.03.2016 

(inclusive of net loss of Rs. 26.03 Cr. of FlY 2015-16). 

In respect of CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) and sustainable development, 

I would like to inform that during the financial year 2015-16, a project on CSR 

and sustainability was implemented by TERI (The Energy and Resources 

Institute) in Shimla, Kullu and Kinnaur districts of Himachal Pradesh covering 

activities like training and capacity building, exposure visits, distribution of apple 

planting materials, water solutions etc. to more than 250 beneficiaries. 

With respect to Corporate Governance, I would like to mention that your 

Company is following almost all the guidelines issued by Department of Public 

Enterprises. 

In conclusion, I would like to extend my sincere thanks and deep gratitude to the 

esteemed Shareholders, Board of Directors and Auditors' for their valuable 

support, advice and guidance. 

Thanking you, 

Place: New Delhi (Anil Kumar Gupta) 

Date : 27.07.2016 Chairman. 
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FRESH &: HEALTHY ENTERPRISES UMITED (FHEl) 
(A wholly owned subsidiary ofCONCOR) 

Directors' Report 

To the shareholders 

Your Directors are pleased to present their report on the business and operations of the 
Company together with the Audited Actounts fur the finandal year ending 31~ March, 2016. 

Restructuring of FHEl 

Keeping in view the losses incurred by the Company year aA:er year despite implementation 
of various strategic measuresf it was agreed that (a) company will not do any 
purchase/procurement during the year; and (b) leasing model for CA (Controlled 
Atmosphere) chambers would be followed fur the year 2015-16. 

Further, Committee of Secretaries (COS) in its meeting held on 13.07.2015 recommended 
that MlnistJy of Railways (MaR) may consider the possibility of divesting the COmpany to the 
Pnvate sector. However, HSIIDC in their letter in December, 2015 refused to transfer land 
[ease arrangements on which the fadlity has been constructed to any private entity, thus 
making divestment not a feas!ble option. In view of such refusal by HSIIDCj various options 
like merger, closure etc., are bejng examined for restructuring of your company. 

Operations's" Marketing Review 

On 1s1 April 2015. your company had a stock of 3825 MT of apples. Out of this, FHEL had 
entered into an agreement INith MIs Fel, Chennai for sale of 2,500 MT of apples. Hence, 
bulk of the quantity was sold to them as per the agreement. Balance material was sold to 
number of buyers from Delhi, Chennai, Vljaywada, Mumbai, Kolkata, Guwahati, Bihar, Maida 
etc. Nearly. all the sales were made from the CA stores at fixed prices. However, as market 
prices were low. realizations were not upto maric 

As regards transactions for the year 2015~16, FHEL changed its Business model from long 
term procurement, storage and sale of apples to leasing out CA Chambers to the interested 
parties. It was the first year with the changed business mode!. In Hne with the company's 
open door policy, the availability of space was widely publicized by giving an advertisement 
on all India basis jn the leading newspaper and also by sending both written invitations and 
personal contacting on phone and email for space booking. 

During the year 37 chambers were given on rent to various parties} leading apple busll')ess 
players. The parties who took chambers on rent Include Gem Tree Natural Produce P ltd., 
Adani Agri Fresh ltd.• United Cold Chain & Food Processing Ltd., Dev Shoam! Cold Chain P 
Ltd., Mr. Amit Kumar, Mr. Ruplnder Pal, Dahiya Floritech, Mr. Vinod Joshi and Hlm Agro. 
Though, Initiany the interest was eVinced by the above parties for taking on rent all the 78 
chambers but they could not occupy the same due to higher Kinnaur apple prIces making 
long term storage .fisky and in their perception financially uneconomical 
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 

During the year under review, Operating turnover of your Company registered a decllne of 
26.54% appx. i. e. from Rs. 32.14 Cr. in FlY 2014-15 to Rs. 23.61 Cr. In FlY 2015-16. Cost 
of Sales increased by 21.40% appx., from Rs. 30.70 Cr. in FlY 2014-15 to Rs. 37.27 Cr. in 
FlY 2015-16, primarily onacrount of stock transfer of preViOUS year. Further, Employee 
Benefits Expenses, Finance costs and other expenses for FlY 2015-16 are Rs. 1.75 Cr., Rs. 
3.08 Cr. and Rs. 271 Cr., respectively. After providing for depreciation & amortization 
expenses amounting to Rs. 5.37 Cr., the Company suffered Net Loss of Its. 26.03 Cr. during 
FlY 2015-16 as against Net loss of Rs. 14.47 Cr. during previous year (2014-15). As on 
31.03.2016, acaJmulated losses of the company stood at Rs. 140.39 Cr. 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

The Authorized Equity Share Capital of the Company stood at Its. 150 Cr. Isued, 
Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company remained Its. 145.67 Cr. 
CONCOR continues to hold 100% of the Paid up Equity Share Capital of FHEl., duting 
the financial year 2015-16. 

SECURED LOANS 

Your Company has not taken any Secured loan during FlY 2015-16. 

UNSECURED LOAN 

In order to meet working capital requirement for FlY 2015-16, your Company entered 
into an arrangement with CONCOR (holding company) for sanction of unsecured 
working capital loan of Rs. 1.90 Cr. at an interest rate of 8.51% p.a. Out of sanctioned 
working capital loan of Rs. 1.90 Cr., your Company had drawn a sum of Its. 1.45 Cr. on 
31.03.2016. 

As on 31.03.2016, total outstanding loan (unsecured) due to holding Company 
(CONCOR) stood at Its. 31.45 Cr. (inclusive of Rs. 30 Cr. for FlY 2014-15 and Rs. 1.45 
Cr. for FlY 2015-16). Apart from thiS, Company has interest accrued 8< due on 
borrowings of Rs. 11.22 Cr. on 31.03.2016. 

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES 

As per notification dated 5"' June, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, first and 
second proviso to sub-section (1) of Section 188 under Chapter XII of Companies Act, 
2013, are not applicable to a Government Company in respect of contracts or 
arrangements entered into with any other Government Company. 

During the period ended 31" March, 2016, FHEL's related party transactions were with 
its holding company CONCOR (A PSU under Ministry of Railways), in ordinary course of 
business and on arm's length basis. The same are reviewed and approved by the Audit 
Ccmmlttee regularly in its meetings. 
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The details of contracts or arrangements or transactions with Related parties as required 
under Section 134(3)(h} of Companies Act, 2013, are attached in the prescribed fonn, 

CONTROLLED ATMOSP~I!iRE (CAl STORE 

In order to increase the shelf life of rruits and vegetables produced in the Country, 
Company has a Controlled Atmosphere (CA) Store conSisting of three units of 4000 MT 
capacity each at Rai, Sonepat with total capadty of 12000 MT appx, The facility has 
been operating successfully during the FlY 2015-16, 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

As per notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government companies have been exempted to comply with the provisions of Section 
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules of Chapter XIll, FHEL being a 
Government company is not required to include aforesaid Information as a part of the 
Directors' Report, However during the period under reView, the Company had no 
employees of the category falling under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel). 

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEM,ENT 

Human resource management function in the organization is designed to maximize 
employee perfonnance and Is an employers strategiC objective, As on 31.03.2016, 
employee strength of company remained 27 (which indudes Regular-24 and three 
employees deputed by CONCOR). All the employees have high level of motivation to 
achieve organization's objectives. The company also gives training to employees 
whenever considered necessary. 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

FHEL maintained industrial peace and harmonious relations and no man-days were lost 
during the financial year, Positive IR has been the goal of HR Department. FHEL 
provides two way communIcation, participative culturel open platforms for discussion for 
ideas and motivation of the employees. 

RESERVATION POLICY 

FHEL a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR, a Central Government Public Sector (PSU), 
is following all the Presidential Directives and Guidelines as issued by the Government 
ITom time to time regarding reservation for SCs, STs, OBCs, Physically Handicappad and 
Ex-servicemen in letter and spirit. As on 31.03,2016, there were 03-0BC, 02-SC and 01­
ST employee, 

Page 3 of9 

5" 



DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. (FHEL) prohibits any kind of act of Sexual Harassment 
at work place and included the acts· amounting to Sexual Harassment at Workplace in its 
Conduct Rules and Certified Standing orders (as certified In 1998) and Discipline & 
Appeal Rules so as to prohibit any such Act. FHEL constituted an Internal Complaints 
Committee in the year 2014 to receive and Investigate complaints related to "Sexual 
harassment at workplace" following the guidelines Issued by Hon'ble SUpreme Court of 
India in l'Visakha Vs. State of Rajasthanll 

, TIle then committee consists of four members 
Including at Manager level & one external member who is practicing advocate In Hon'ble 
High Court of Punjab & Haryana, Chandlgarh. Manager(Fin) & Company Secretary is the 
Presiding Officer of the committee. 

FHEL has 03 female employees out of total 24 employees. The company has created 
conducive work environment free from any kind of harassment During the FY 2015-16, 
no complaint has been received by the Committee. 

VIGILANCE 

Vigilance Awareness Week was observed in FHEL from 26'" Odober, 2015 to 31~ 
Odober, 2015. Theme for this year's Vigilance Awareness Week was 'Preventive 
Vigilance As A Tool of Good Governance!. The Vigilance Awareness Week was 
observed at FHEL CA Store, Rai/Sonepat with fervor, zeal and enthusiasm wherein all 
employees partiCipated and shown their intention to take preventive measures in order 
to achieve Government of India's objective to fight with corruption and prevalence of 
Good Governance all over the country. Posters were also floated in facility In view of 

. Vigilance Awareness Week. 

During the Vigilance Awareness Week, 'OATH OF ALLEGIANCE' was administered 
amongst all the employees at FHEL CA Store/Rai by the CEO on 27.10.2015. During 
the week, all employees have been advised to be vigilant at all times while dealing with 
offidal matters and perform their duties diligently. 

During the year under review, one case pertaining to Irregularity in payment to FHEL 
was brought into notice by vigilance department of CONCOR and the same was 
registered with the investigating agency by CONCOR. 

RESEARCH 8. DEVELQPMENT (R & D) 

Due to change in business model of the Company, no new R&D activities were carried 
out during the period under review. 

CA storage readings of chambers are maintained within set range ·after the chambers 
attained the staady state temperatures and CA values. Percentage (%) of readings of CA 
Storage not within acceptable range, are less than 3 (three) %. 
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CORPORATE SOCIAL BESPONSIBIlIlY (CSR) ANO SUSTAIJ'lAB!,E 
DEVELOPMEN1 

Under CONCOR/FHEL's CSR and Sustainability initiative, a project on CSR a111 I I 
Sustainability was implemented by The Energy and Resources Institute (fERI) in Shiml'l, 
Kullu and Kinnaur dIstricts of Himachal Pradesh covering activi~es like training and 
capacity buildingt exposure visits, dlstribution of apple planting materials, water 
solutions etc. The project covered more than 250 beneficiaries through training 
programs during the financial year 2015-16. Being a loss making entity, FHEL is not 

mandated to incur anY' _expenditure towards CSR in accordance with the provisions or 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 


PARTICULARS REIJITING 10 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. 1ECHNOLQ!aY 
ABsORPTION. fOREIGN EXCHANGE EARf'jINGS III OUTGO 

The partia.llars in respect of Conservation of energy, technology absorption are detailed 
in the Annexure. 

There is no Foreign Exchange earning or outgo during the Finandal year 2015-16. 

IRISK MANAGEMEN1 POLICY 

FHEL has identified the possible risks and mitigation plans ariSing in the operations and 

other key area of the company. Implementation of risk mitigation/management 

measures is reviewed by Audit Committee and Board periodically. 


AUDlIORS 

Being a Government Company, the Comptroller & Auditor General of India appointed 

M/s. Anil Ashok & Assodates, Chartered Accountants, Delhi as Company's StatutOl, 

Auditors for the FjY 2015-16. StatutoI)' Auditor is paid remunera~on of Rs 1,08,000/ 

plus Service Tax, as fIXed by Board of Directors'. The Statutrny Auditors of YOlll 

Company have given report on the acwunts of the Company for the finanaal year 2015­
16 drawing attention under 'Emphasis of Matter' to Note 15(13) & Note 2 to financial 

statements, related to sundl)' debtors and significant doubt about the Company's abilll', 

to continue as a going concern, respectively. Management's replies to the points ralS€il 

by Statutnl)' Auditor are as under ., 


,Statutoij Auditor's RemarkS . IManagement's Replies -I 
, Statutory Auditor Report-
Emphasis of Matter ' 

I 
i 4.1 (Al Note 15(13) to the flnancial IIt is stated that 04 cases are subjudlce I 

statement in respect of sundry debtors Iin legal proceedings. In all fOUr cases, I 
there is uncertainty related to the legal proceedings are under process. 
outcome Of the lawsuit filed against 

..\'arioussundry debtors. 

P"f""" 5" ~ 1 
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Statutory Auditor Report-
Emphasis of Matter 
4.1(B) Note 2 in the financial statement 
which indicates that the Company has 
accumulated losses and Its Net Worth 
has been fully! substantially eroded, 

FHEl.. is a fully owned subsidiary of 
CONCOR. It was incorporated in 
February 2006 with Rs.35 Crores equity 
capital received from CONCOR, and 

the Company has incurred a net loss / • became operational in the year 2008 
net Cash loss during the current year 
and previous year(s) and, the Company 
current liabilities exceeded its current 
assets as at the balance sheet date. 

As on 31.03.2016, the paid up share 
capital of the company stood at Rs. 
145.67 crores. FHEL intends to derive 
its strength from CONCOR, its holding 

These condlUons indicate the existence. company & is convinced of long term 
of a material uncertainty that cast. value in this segment 
significant doubt about the Company's. During next year, 60-65 chambers are 
ability to continue as a going concern. : expected to be leased for an average 
However, the financial statements of period of around 8 months which Is 
the Company have been prepared on a expected to generate income of Rs.7.5 
going concern basis for the reasons to 	Rs.8 crores, as good monsoon is 
stated in the said Note. 

Our opinion is not modified 
respect of these matters. 

expected this year. Further, Company 
is already exploring various options 

in I	about business prospects for FHEL In 
future such as option of PPP model.: 
Decision has also been taken to utilize 
vacant land available in Rai for 
developing as CONCOR CFS for Agri 
products. Therefore, there Is 
reasonable certainty about the viability 
of the company. The management is of 
the view that the company will be in 
good condition in coming years as 
various options are beinQ explored. 

Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) vide office letter no. PDAjRC/RPSU/32­
36/F&H/2015-16/1130 dated 17.06.2016 communicated its comment that it has dedded 
not to conduct the supplementary audit of the financial statements of FHEL for the year 
ended 31~ March, 2016 under section 143(6)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Report of Statutory Auditor along-with Comments of C&AG on the financial statements 
of the Company for FlY 2015-16, are placed elsewhere in the Annual Report. 

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, 
Company has appOinted M/s. Kumar Tripathi & Assodates, Company Secretaries as 
Secretarial Auditor, who have conducted Secretalial Audit fur FlY 2015·16. The Report 
of Secretarial Auditor fur FlY 2015-16 and the Auditor who has given Corporate 
Governance Compliance certificate without any adverse observation/remark, are 
attached herewith. 
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Further, MIs. M. V. Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as Intemal Auditors of 
FHEL, who conducted Internal Audit for the F{'( 2015-16 . 

.!!QARD QF DI~JiCJ~ 

The Board met 5 (five) times for transacting bUsiness of the Company during the 
finandal year 2015-16. 

Shrl Sudhir Mathur, ceased to be Independent Director on account of expiry of term on 
24.09.2015. Shri Pradeep Shatnagar was appointed as Independent Director of FHEL 
w.eJ. 12.10.2015. 

Further, the tenure of Shri Pradeep Shatnagar and Shri M. P. Shorawarn, Independent 
Directors expired on 05.OJ.2016. 

The Board placed on record appreciation for valuable services rendered by past 
members during their term of directorship in FHEL. 

Further, Major Gen. (Retd.) Raj Klishan Malhotra and Shri Sanjeev S. Shah, were 
appointed as Independent Directors of the Company w. e. f. 02.05.2016. 

The following Directors are on the Soard till the date of the Report -, 

1. Shri Anil Kumar Gupta, CMD/CONCOR & Chainman/FHEL; 
2. Shri YashVardhan, Director (IM & O)/CONCOR & Director/FHEL; 
3. Dr. P. Alii Rani, Director (Finance)fCONCOR & DirectorfFHEL; 
4. Shri Arvind Shatnagar, Director (Dom. Div.)/CONCOR & DirectorfFHEL; 
5. Maj. Gen. (Retd.) Raj Krishan Malhotra, Independent DirectorlFHEL; 
6. Shri Sanjeev S. Shah, Independent Director/FHEL 

RETIREMENT OF DIRECIQBlUi'l.ROTAIlQ« 

In terms of provIsions of the CompanIes Act, 2013/ Shri Anil KUmar Gupta, Chairman, is 
liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-apPointment. 

QECUIRATIQI'! BY INDEI'§'lQENLQI_REQ'QHS.~_SEPARJ\R MEffiI\I!LQf 
1NDl'l'!iliDENTJ:!1REtJ..Qrui 

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosure to Board that they fulfill all 
the reqUirements as to qualifY for their appointment as an independent Director under 
the provision of the Companies Act, 2013. 

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 04_03.2016, which was 
attended by Shri Pradeep Shatnagar and Shri M. P. Shornwala, Independent Directors. 
In the saId meeting, Independent Directors reviewed inter~alia the performance of nOI1­

independent directors, Board as a whole, Chalrman and assessed the quality, quantity, 
timelines of flow of information etc. 
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PERfORMANCE EVALUATION OF TIlE DIRECTORS' AND THE BOARD 

As required by provIsions of Companies Act, 2013, evaluation of performance of 
directors including that of Independent Directors' and the Board is to be carried out 
either by the Board or by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by the 
Independent Directors. ·It also requires disclosure of formulated criteria for perfonnance 
evaluation in this Report. 

In this regard, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, through its notification dated 5'" June, 2015 
has exempted Government Companies trom these provisions. The appointment of 
Directors of your Company is done by holding company CONCOR, a PSU under Ministry 
of Railways. Also, performance of the Board of Government Companies Is evaluated 
during performance evaluation of the MOU signed with the holding company, in 
accordance with guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises. 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
In accordance with the provisions of Sectlon 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013, Board 
confirmed that·: 

(0 	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2016, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures; 

(ill 	 the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently 
and made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent SO as to 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of 
financial year and of the profit and ross of the Company for the year under 
review; 

(iii) 	 the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies ~ 20131 

for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detectlng fraud 
and other irregularities; 

(iv) 	 the directors had prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31" March, 
2016 on a 'going concern' basis; . 

(v) 	 the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company 
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating eff'ectjvelYi 

(vi) 	 the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
all applicable laws and that such syStems were adequate and operating effectiveiy. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Company has adapted CONCOR's Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior 
Management of the Company. Link of the Code of Conduct is available on website of the 
Company i.e. www.fheLco-in. 
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Based on the affirmation received from Board Members and Key Managerial Personnel, it is 
hereby declared that all the members of the Board and Key Managerial Personnel have 
affirmed compliance of Code of COnduct for the financial year ended on March 31st, 2016. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND ....MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIO!l......1I< ANALYSIS 
REPORT 

Report on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis Is enclosed and 
fonns part of Directors' Report. 

EXTRA&! OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Extract of Annual Return for the financial year ended on 31.03.2016 1S attached in the preseribcd 
ITmn, 

CONCWSION 

Your Company admowledges the support and understanding extended by Container 
CorporatIon of India Limited, Bankers and Auditors of the Company, 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/­
Place: New Delhi (Anil Kumar Gupta) 
Date: 27,01,,2016 CHAIRMAN 
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Annexure to thttPl!!;ctors,~,c.'.;R~e~p~o!1,rt~_____. 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

Fresh&. Healthy Entetprises-·Lc;,"'d"'."("rn""E"'L"I-'is-a-'W=h""o"U"'--y~Owned Sub~ 

Container Corporation of India Ltd. (CONCOR) to carry on Cold chain business. 


~QMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY 

FHEL's mission is to develop into world class organization using state of the art 
technologies for procurement) transportation) storage and distribution of fruits and 
vegetables in the Country. The Company strives to provide value for money to its 
customers and fu lflll aspiration of its stakeholders by providing qualitative and 
efficient services and to conduct its business according to best principles of good 
Corporate Governance as indicated by the disclosures given in the Annexure. 

IlQARD OF !)JRECTOR§ 

CMD/CONCOR is the ex-officio ParHirne Chalnnan on the Board ofFHEL and all other members of 
Board are nominated I appointed by CONCOR. 

Board of Directors' oflhe Company comprises 0{ Six Part-time Directors including <1 Chairman (Ex­
officio). one Women Director and two Independent Directors. 

As on 31,03.2016, the composition ofBoard was not in conformity with OPE guidelines on Corporate 
Governance as number of independent directors are not one..third of the total strength of the Board due 
to complelion of tenure of Shri Mahipal Shorawala and Shri Pradeep Bhatnagar, independent dlrectorn 
on 05.03,2016, 

FHEL appointed Maj. Gen. (ReId.) Raj Krishan Malhotra and Shrj Sanjeev S. Shah as Independent 
Directors w. e. f. 02.05,t6. After appointment of two independent directors, Company is in 
compliance with the provisions ofDPE guidelines on Corporate Governance, 

The Board met five times for transacting bUSiness during the financial year 2015-16 on the following 
dates :­

Board M~eting NQ.,. ~~r:!!M~<1tes 

54 29"Aprll.2015 


55 21>1 Jufy. 2015 

56 31 M August. 2015 


57 19111 OCL, 2015 


58 J9~ Jan.• 2016 


The Company has adopted CONCOR's Code ofConduct for Board Members & Senior Management 
of the Company. The link ofsame is available on websile ofcompany Le. www.fheLco.in. 

Based on the affirmation received from Board Members and Key Managerial Personne1, it is hereby 
declared that all tbe members ofthc Board and Key Managerial Personnel have affinned compliance 
ofCode ofConduct for the financial year cnded Mareh 31"1. 20 16. 
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The Composition of Di.rc:etors, attendance Ilt the Soan! Meetings during the )'CU 201s..16l1J1d the 1m Anru'w Gcner.tl M~ring. the number of other ~tonhip$, clui=nship and committee membe[Srups (as pro\ided) 
yen bel,DelDWu, . -: 

SlNo. C"lcgory of Dir<:clorship N:unc of DireClOt No. of 
Boan:! 
Migs 
Attended 

AUtll­

D=c:c 
Albs! 
AGM 

No. of Other Committee 
McmhCl'1Ihip/ Chairman-

Ship 

No.orOlbe! 
Din:er.ol"8hip I Ch:airm:m 

Ship 

(1) Part_time Ex-Officio/Non-
EKccudvc Chairman 

Chrunnnn & Man~ging Director, 
I. CONCOR 

(l~ Pan-lime INon-Executive 
Directors 

2. Di•. (1M & Ops)/CO;.<COR 

J. Dit. (Financc)/CONCOR 

,. Dir. (Domestie)/CONCOR 

(lll) P"I'1'limc Non·E:<cculive 
Directors (Independent) 

, Direelor 

6. Direelor 

I. Director 

Sh Anil Kum.u Gupta 
(DIN: 00066328) 

Sh. Y:t!Ih V~dl""l 
(DIN: 01842119) 

Dr. P. r\Ui JUni 
(DIN: 02305257) 

Shri Afvind Bhatn.:l.g:>r 
(DIN: 03564703) 

Shri Sudhir M~lhur' 
(DIN; 00168155) 

Shn M. P. Shor::lw~b" 
(DIN: 02754082) 

Shri Pr::ldeep Bh~m~b"'r'" 
(DIN: 00196664) 

flour 

[lour 

ri\'c 

I'i"c 

Th., 

fli"e 

Two 

Yl'S 

'0 
Ye! 

y~ 

y~ 

YCI 

N_A. 

0o, 0o, 

111fCO: Nil 

T,o Two' 

0o, Nil 

Two 0o, 

fli"e Nil 

flour Nil 

Three T",o 

rive One 

Si." Two 

Four Nil 

Two Nil 

flour l\:il 

Two Nil 

~ 


.. Tenure e"pir~d on 24.09.2015. Der:Ws or other Direc[orship/Ch;>irnunship. Other Committee Membership/Ch:1irrrur1!lhip 3re 15 per disclosures rmdc Iut yeo.r. 
Tenure o:pin:d On 05.0:\.2016. Dcmils or other Direcrorship/Ch;>irnunship, Other Commiuce Mcmbership/Ch1irm=o;hip:ue 15 pcr disdosures rmde last y=:o 
Appointed w. c. f. 12.10.2015 3nd tenure c:<pired on 05.03.:2016. Der:Ws of other Dirccrorship/Ch1imunship. Other Commimc Membership/Ch:1irrruruhip:ue :1.'1 per lilS! disclosures !ubmittt:d. 
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 


In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, following officials are the 

Key Managerial Personnel -: 


Sbri Mohan La! Arora, Chief Executive Officer; 

Sbri Umesh Behl, Chief Finance Officer; 

Ms. Suman Lata, Manager (Fin) & Company Secretary. 


MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 04.03.2016 without the 
presence on non-independent directors and members of management. The meeting 'WaS 

attended by both the lndependent Directors. In the said meeting, Independent Directors 
reviewed inter-aHa the performance of non-independent director~ Board as a whole, 
Chairman and a.<;sessed satisfactory quality. quantity, timelines of flow of infonnatioo, 
compliance of regulatory requirements etc. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

At the beginning of the financia! year 2015-16, Audit Committee comprised of the 
following members -: 

Shri Sudhir Mathur - Chairman 
Sbri M. P. Shorawala -Member 
Dr. P. Alii Rani - Member 

Ms. Suman Lata, Manager (Fin) & CS is the Secretary of the Committee. 

After expiry of term of 8hri Sudhi, Mothur, Independent Director on 24.09.2015, 8hri ,
Pradeep Bhatnagar~ Independent Director was inducted as member of Committee w, e, f, 
19.10.2015, who continued to be the member of Committee till expiry of his term on 
05.03.2016. Further, the term of 8bri M. P. Shorawala, who chaired the meetings of 
Audit Committee, after expiry of tenn of Shri Sudhir Mathur. Independent Director. also 
expired on 05.03.2016. 

As on 31.03.2016 Audit Committee comprised of only one member i.e. Dr. P. Alii Rani, 
Director, due to expiry of tenure of 8hri M. P. Shorawala and Sbri Pradeep Bhatnagar, 
Independent direetors on 05.03.2016. 

After appointment of Shri Sanjeev S. Shah and Maj. Gen. (Reid.) Raj Krishan Malhotra, 
Independent Directors on the Board of FHEL and their nomination as members of Audit 
Conurdttee w.e.f. 02.05.2016, FHEL is in compliance with DPE guidelines on Corporate 
Governance in respect of having minimum three directors as members of Audit 
Committee with two-thirds as Independent Directors. 
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The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the financial Year 2015-2016 on 29.04.15, 
21.07.15,19.10.15 and 19.01.l6. 

The details of the attendance of the members in the Committee meetings held during FlY 
2015-16 are as under-: 

S. No.' N=-a-m-e-o-=r7M~e-m-:bers .---------"-~ 

,__~____..___.. ____.. 
I. 8hri Sudmr Mathur -_. ---~~-~-

~-'- Shri M. P. Shorawala ___ 
3. Dr. P. Alii Rani 
4. Shril'radeeE Bhat~"ll"-'=--=--________._ 

No. of Committee 
Meeti"ll" Atte.nded 
Two 
Four 
Four 
Two __--.! 

The Committee reviews the Company's Annual f quarterly finaneial Results before 
submission to the Board. The Committee attempts to ensure that decision making in the 
eompany is objective and that there are adequate intemal controls to ensure efficient 
reaJization of revenue, and due propriety ofexpendi ture. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERA'IlON CQMMlTTEE 

At the beginning of FlY 2015-16, Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) 
comprised of the foHowing members-; 

(i) Shri Sudhir Mathur - Clminnan 
(ii) Shri M. P. Shornwala - Direetor 
(iii) 8hri Arvind Bhatnagar - Director 

After expiry of term of Shri Sudhir Mathur, Independent Director on 24.09.2015, 8hri 
Pradeep Bhatnagar, Independent Director was nominated as member of NRC w. e. f. 
19.10,20t5~ who continued to be the member of Committee till expiry of his tenn on 
05.03.2016. Further, the teon of Shri M_ P. Shorowala. Independent Director also ('''Xpired 
on 05.03.2016. 

As on 31.03.2016 Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of only one 
member i.e. Shri Arvind Bhatnagar, Director; due to expiry of tenure of Shri M. P. 
Shorawala and Shri Pmdeep Bhatnagar) fndependent directors on 05.03.2016. 

After appointment of Shri Sanjccv S. Shah and Maj. Gen. (ReId.) Raj Krishan Malhotra, 
Independent Directors on the Board of FHEL and their nomination as members of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee w. c. f 02.05.2016, FHEL is in compliance 
with DPE guidelines on Cornorate Governance, . 
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During the year 2015-16. One meeting of 'Nomination & Remuneration Committee was 
held on 29.04.2015. Details ofattendance at the meetings are as under-; 

S.No. 

-J: 

Name of Members No. of Committee 
Meetin.. Attended 

Shri Sudhir Mathur One 
2, • Shri M, P. Shorawala One 

3, 8hri PradeeD Bhatnuar N.A. 
4. I Shn Arvind Bhatnagar One 

5thAs per notification dated June, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate AffairS, 
Government Companies have been exempted to comply with the provisions of sub~ 
sections (2), (3) & (4) of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 except with regard to 
appointment of Senior management and other employees. Thus, FHEL is not required to 
comply with the laid down requirements in respect of Direetors. Being a whoIly owned 
Subsidiary of Container Corporation of India Ltd. (Gov!. Company), 
appointment/nomination ofall the Directors is done by CONCOR (holding company). The 
Committee reviews and reoornmends to Board for confirmation of appointment of Key 
Managerial Personnel. 

No remuneration is paid to functional Directors of holding Company 
nominated/appointed by CONCOR in FHEL. They draw their remuneration from 
CONCOR as per IDA Pay Scales and terms & conditions determined by Gov!. 

The Part-time non-executive direetors (independent) are paid sitting fee of Rs. 2O~OOO/­
tor eaeh meeting of the Board or Committee thereof attended by them, except Rs. 
10,000/- for attending meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee apart ftom 
reimbursement of expenses for participating in the Board and other meetings. 

The details of sitting fee paid during FlY 2015-16 to Part-time non-executive 
(Independent) Directors, for attending meetings of Board of Directors and Committee 
thereof, are given below -; 

S.No. Name of Dir(:(:tors Rs. in Lakhs@ 

• J. Shri Sudhir Mathur 1.10 
2. Shri M. P. Shorawala . 2.10 

·3. Shri Pradeep Bhatna!!,ar 1.00 

@ excluding service tax. 

, PageS of9 

Ie, 



SUBSIDIARY roMPANY 

FHEL is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company of CONCOR and its turnover or net 
worth is less than 20% of turnover or net worth, respectively of CON COR (Holding 
Company). The Company is following Corporate Governance Guidelines and has two 
Jndependent DirectorS of BOD of CONCOR in its Board, Audit Committee and 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Independent dIreetor, is also designated as the 
Chairman of Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee. The 
Company also follows the practice ofputting up of Minutes of Board Meetings ofFHEL 
to the BOD of Holding Company, viz. CONCOR. 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

Delails oflocation. time and date of last three AGMs are as under: 

AGMDate Location Time 

31.08.2015 Conference Han. 
Container Corporation ofIndia Ltd. 
C<3, Mathura Road, 
New Delhi 110076. 

11 :00 Hrs.. 

02.09.14 -·~~-~Do·~·-- 10:30 Hrs. 

18.01.13 --·---Do-~---.. · 15:00 Hrs. 

In the last AGM held on 31.08.2015, Speeial Resolution was passed in terms of Section 
197(7) and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013, for payment of sitting 
fee to every Non-official part time (Independent) Director of Rs. 20,000/- (Rs. Twenty 
thousand only) for each Board or any of its Committee meeting, except Rs. 10,0001- (Rs. 
Ten thousand only) for attending meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committ~ 
apart from reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board and other meetings~ 
w. e. f.22" Oct., 2014. 

AGM of Current Year 

Date 27'" July, 2016 

Time 5P.M. 

Venue CONCOR Bhawan, 


C-3, Mathura Road, 
New Dellii - 110076. 
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DISCLOSURES 


(i) 	 During the year, there was no transaction ofmaterial nature with the directors or 
their relatives that had potential conflict with the interest of the company. 

(ii) 	 There were no instances ofpenalties I strietures imposed on the Company by any 
statutory authority due to non~compliance on any matter related to any guidelines 
issued by Government during the last three years. 

(iii) 	 In terms of Corporate Governance Guidelines & to adopt best practices therein, 
the CompmlY has 'Whistle Blower Policy' in place. 

(iv) 	 Your Compmly has filed report on Corpornte Governance in specified /bun.t to 
CONCUR (holding compmlY) & DPE within stipulated time. 

(v) 	 Compliance with the requirement of these guidelines are detailed in this report 

(vi) 	 FHEL has been following Presidential Directives.and Guidelines issued by the 
GoV!. of India from time to time regarding reservation of SCs, STs, OBCs, 
Physically Handicapped & Ex-Service'!'en in letter and spirit. 

(vii) 	 No Expenditure has been debited in the Books ofAccounts, which is not for the 
pUljlose of business. 

(viil) 	 The Company has not incurred any expense which is personal in nature and 
incurred for the Board ofDirectors and Top Management. 

(ix) 	 Details ofAdminislrlltive and office expenses as percentage oftota! expenses -: 

Fin.Yen Admn. & Office Exp. Total Exocn$;S! Percentage ofAdmn. 
(Rs.in Lakhs) @.inWkh~l 	 & Office Exmnses 

Vis~a~vls Total 
Expenses 

2015-16 260.71 	 5018.07 520% 

2014-15 263.99 	 4733.78 5.58% 

(x) 	 Transsetions with related parties as per requirements of Accounting Standard, 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Aceountants of India are disclosed in relevant 
notes to the Balance Sheet ofthe Company. 

(xi) 	 The Company has an adequate risk assessment and minimization plan. Certifieate 
ofeomplianee ofapplicable laws, is being placed before the Board. 
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

Financial Results: The Annual Report and quarterly un-audited financial resuhs are 
regularly posted by !.he Company on its website. 

Annual ReQort : Annual Report containing inter-alia Audited Annual Accounts, 
Directors' Report. Auditors' Report and other information, L"i circulated to members and 
others entitled thereto. Management Discussion & Analysis report forms a part of the 
Annual report. 

--­Name Date or Birth Dllte of Qualifications Expertise ;. List of Details of 
nppolntmen specific Other Other 
t fUIlt:tional Compani Committee 

areas e' ;n Membersb 
which ;p 
Directors 
bin Held 

Shri Anil 24.09.1956-, 28,O2~2006, MA M. Phil. Ex-fRTS Three@ Oneil 
Kum" (Economics) officer with 
G<>pta MBA (NMP) Professional 
DIN experience ill 
:00066328 Railway 

Operations, 
Commercial & 
Safety. 
Expertise in 
Container 
Tenninal 
Planning ••d 
Management 
& Marketing 
of lvgisLics 
Services. 

8lui 24.03.1952 12.10:2015 B.A. (Physics, Ex- Two@@ Four## 
Pradeep Maths & AM(Tramc), 
Bhamagar Statistics) and Railway Board 
DIN M. A. find having 
001%664 (Westem experience of 

History) more lhan 16 
years in 
position of 11. 
Secremry .nd 

Maj. Gen. 02.09.1949 02.05.2016 I M. So. M. 
above, 
Reid. Major One@@ Nil 

(ReId.) !lEj Phil. Gen. with @ 
Krlshan experience in 
Malhotra National 
DIN . Security 
07483212 Council 

Secretariat 
undef PMO 
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... ..~-~~- --~ , continuouslyI 
for eight years. ! ,I 

, 

IShri ; as,06,1960 1 02,05.2016 SpeciaJization ; Five@@ : 5i)(##11­B. !ie,. CA, 
,,,Sanjeev S. CFE in Merg= & ! @@ , 

,, Shan Acquisitions, , , 
! Corporate ,

DIN ! 
003231(i3 , ! Finam:e., ,,

Acquisition 
, Strategies, Due 

Diligence, 
institutional & 
Private Equity, 
Capital Re· 
strucruring, & 
Rehabilitation, 
Drafting and 
VeHing of 
legal 
documents 

@ L MIs. Container Corporation of tndia Ltd. as Chairman and Managing Director, 2. MIs. 
CO}lCOR Air Limited as Chairman 3. MIs, SIQCUL CONCOR Infra Co. Ltd. as Director. 

1# Chairman ofCSR Apex Committee in Container Corporation of India Ltd. 

@@ 1.Mls. Container Corporation of India Ltd. 2. Mis. CONCOR Air Limited 

## L Member of Audit Committee, HR Committee and CSR Committee 
Corporation of India Ltd, 2. Member of Audit Committee in CONCOR Air Ltd. 

in Container 

@@@ MIl>. Container Corporation ofindia Ltd. as Part-lime Independent Director, 

@@@@ 	 As Non-Executive Independent Director of (I) MIs. Container Corporation of India Ltd. (2) 
CONCOR Air Ltd. (3) tOT Anwesha Engineering & Construction Ltd,~ and as Non.Executive 
Director oe(1) Mis. Morgan Fincons Pvt Ltd. (2) Mis. Mapata Holdings Pyi, Ltd. 

U## 	 I. Member of Audit Committee and Chairman of Nominatioo and Remuneration Committee in 
t\<1Is. Container Corporation of India Ltd. 2. Member of Audit Committee in CONCOR. Air Ltd. 
3. Chairman of I).udit Committee and Nomination &. Remuneration Committee in MIs lOT 
Anwesha Engineering & Construction I.td. and Member of CSR Committee in Mis. lOT 
Anwesha: Engineering & Construclion Ltd. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSSION AND ANALYSIS 

1~ Industry Structure & Developments 

Food! Agriculture and medical sectors are perhaps most important for the mankind 
and any country. Accordingly. FoodiAgrL Sector is on priority list of present 
Indian government as well. In the Agri sector, Fruits and Vegetables segment 
holds a prominent position. India is a largest producer of vegetables and second 
largest producer of fruits in the world, Rs, 2.00~OOO crores plus. This in itself is a 
proof that Fruits and Vegetables sector and businesses dealing with it hold 
immense business potential. As per data available, nearly, 18% of the total Fruits 
and Vegetables production valuing approx. Rs. 36,000 crores plus perishes every 

. year due to noo-availabiUty of appropriate and adequate cold chain infrastructure 
in the country. Henee. presents an excellent business opportunity, 

Though, Fruits and Vegetabtes sector has Its own challenges. Fruits & Vegetable 
business in India is almost entirely in the unorganized sector. The farm sizes are 
small and traditionally growers either bring their produce to nearby marf<etsl 
mandies or send the produce to commission agents fOT sale. AU the p]ayers in the 
supply chain growers, commission agents, othcr middlemen and retailers. are 
totally unorganized. In recent past a few retail chains are also moving slowly and 
are developing formats which can generate profits. Due to the perishable nature 
of the commodity. the emphasjs on fresh proouce in retail chains is very low 
and this also is bought from nearby mandics only. Further, the country lacks 
Cold Chain infrastructure and therefore, generally during the season we see 
glut in the market & prices dip to unsustainable levels. AU faetors mentioned 
above lead to losses of produce. 

Most of the Cold Store facilities available are suitable and used for Potato 
Storage, There is a gap with respect to availabiHty of state of the art Cold Chain 
Infrastructure & Knowledge of Storage of other Fruits & Vegetables. This 
presents both a problem & an opportunity in this sector. 

FHEL is one of the first companies who had invested in speeialized CA Store for 
storage of apples, Encouraged by thc suitability of technology and associated 
benefits, private sector has seized the-opportunity and invested heavily in setting 
up of CA Stores in the country. In last 10 years, many facilities have come up in 
Delhi NCR and in apple growing stales of Himachal Pradesh and Jammu & 
Kashmir. Presently, the estimated CA Storage capacity in the country is in excess 
of 1.25 lac ,MT. This exponentlal increase in the capacity has resulted in rather 
stunted growth of imported apples, thereby, conserving procious foreign exchange 
for the country. Despite all these developments the import of apples is still 
inereasing exhibiting further growth potenlial of CA ::.'tOrage in the country. 
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2. Strength & Weakness: 

Strengths -: 

a) 	Fruits & Vegelable market in India is huge (approx. Rs. 2,00,000 Crore +) & 
high pereentage (i.e. I S%)of perishability holds tremendous business 
potential for Cold Chain infrastrueture segment. t 

b) The increase in the disposabJe income in hand of the consumer has led to year 

round demand for apples and hence larger demand for CA Storage. 


c) Being in operation for last 9 years the target customers are reasonably sure of 

our storage facility. 


d) Being a PSU, the transparent and unifonn policies and dealings with all leads 

to better confidence among the clients. 


e) There is huge latent demand for quality produce~ as eountry is importing large 

quantities of Fruits. 


f) High Margins in this trade arc possible, resulting in higher demand potential. 


I 
l

Weaknesses -: 

a) The sector is highly unorganized. 

b) Smaller players like growers are not able to reap the benefit of long term CA 


Storage duc to poor financial risk taking eapacity. 

c) The design and storage format of the CA store also dissuade small clients and 


lot wise storage / withdrawal of the fruit which is the praeliee in the market. 

d) Lack of storage eost bearing potential ofother Fruits and Vegetables and also 


the other products like rice. grains etc. 

e) Lack of knowledge of Pre-Harvest care and Post-Harvest Management 


among the clients leading to lesser interest in storing other products. 

£) Retail Chains have not come up as expected and so organized distribution is 


not possiblq. 


g) The trade is by & large on credit to stakeholders who do not have bankable 

credentials. 


3. Opportunity & Threats: 

Opportunities -: I 
a) The proven results of appJe storage in CA Stores in last 9 years has led to 


. increased storage and the number of clients and hence bigger business 

opportunity. 
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b) Improved living standards have red to higher and round the year demand of 
·ftuits in the country and hcnce increased emphasis en long term storage of 
Fruits and Vegetables, 

c) 	 Since every year fruit imports is growing impressively. if shows customers 
are preferring quality fruit and lhus organized business can make a 
significant contributiO'n. 

Threats -: 

a) 	 High Capillli cost leading to high rental rates, 
b) Big investments made by private sectDr parties, like commissiDn agents, 

grDwers etc, by making both backward and forward linkages leading to' 

shortening O'f the supply chain. 
c) Non- availability O'ftrained ManpO'wer. 

d) Increasing competitiDn from Private player whO' have set up CA stDre in 


last few years, 
e) Unethical practices ofdifferential pricing adO'pted by the private player. 
f) Nimbleness Df private player by adapting to' newer conditions like poor crop, 

glut in the market, negotiating willi big clients etc. 
g) Offering bigger basket of services to the clients like free space fDr packing, 

extended credit period to the clients on the basis of their gDodwill etc. 

4. Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance 

The Company is dealing in logistics of fresh fruits. All the activities of the 
Company revolve around this business and aU the operations are in India. As 
sueh. there is no other reportable segment defined by Accounting Standard AS-17 
related to' Segment reporting. 

5. Internal Control Systems and their Adeguac::v: : 

The Company has in place well defined roles, responsibilities and 
authorities for employees at various levels. This coupled with robust 
internal MIS systems, enSUres appropriate information flow to facilitate 
effective monitoring, Adherence to these processes is monitored through 
frequent Internal audits, The Company has internal audit system that 
requires internal audit firm to certify the appropriateness of internal 
controls In operation and checks deviations from laid down ,procedures. 
The Internal Auditor is the external firm directly reporting to management 
at higher level, thus ensuring its independence. Reports of internal auditor 
are reviewed and compliances are ensured, 
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6. SECURED LOANS 


Your Company has not taken any Secured loan during FlY 2015-16. 

7. 	 UNSECURED LOAN 

In order to meet working capital requirement for FlY 2015 16, your Company entered intow 

an arrangement with CONCOR (holding company) for sanction of unsecured working 

capital loan of Rs. 1.90 Cr. at an interest rate of 8.51% p.a. Out of sanctioned working 

capital loan of Rs. 1.90 Cr., your Company had drawn a sum of Rs. 1.45 Cr. on 

31.03.2016. 


As on 31.03.2016, total outstanding loan (unseeured) due to holding Company 

(CONCOR) stood at Rs. 31.45 Cr. (inclusive ofRs. 30 Cr. for FlY 2014-15 andRs. 1.45 

Cr. for FlY 2015·16). Apart from this, Company has inrerest accrued & due on borrowings 

ofRs. 11.22 Cr. on 31.03.2016. 


8. 	 Eixed Assets 
(Rs. in Cr.) 


Year Ended March 31 2016 2015 Ofgage Incr. (Deer.) 


Original Cost of Assets 80.51 81.68 	 (1.31) 
Less : Accumulated Dep. 34.15 29.2.5 	 16.75 

Net Fixed Assets 46.46 52.43 	 (11.39) 

9. 	 Inventory 

As on 31.03.2016, there was no closing stock of fruits in FHEL. 

10. 	 Trade Receivables 

Trade 	receivables are 8.58% of operating income of the year. 

11. 	 Cash &; Cash Eguivalent ~ 

The Company keeps available cash in fiexi Deposits with Banks.. 

12. 	 Income 

Income from operations has decreased by 26.54% over FlY 2014-15. 
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13. 	 Cost of Sales 

Cost of Sales has increased by 21.40% appx. over FlY 2014-15. 

14. 	 Other Expenses 

Other expenses have decreased by 1.20% over FlY 2014-15. 

15. 	 Employee Remuneration 

The Employee Cost has decreased by 8.07% in comparison to last year. 

16. 	 Material Developments in Human Resources, Industrial Relations 
Front, including number of people employed 

Human resource management function in the organization is designed to maximize 
employee perfonnaoce and is l'\r1 employer's strategic objective. As on 31.03.2016, 
employee strength of company remained 27 (which includes Regular-24 and three 
employees deputed by CONCOR). All the employees have high level of motivation to 
achieve organization's objectives. The company also gives training to empJoyees 
whenever considered necessary. 

FHEL maintained industrial peace and hannonious relations and no man-days were lost 
during the financial year. Positive IR has been the goal or HR Department FHEL 
provides two way communication, participative culltlre. open platforms for discussion for 
ideas and motivation of the employees. 

FHEL a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR, a Central Government Public Seetor 
(PSU). is following all the Presidential Directives and Guidelines as issued by the 
Government from time to time regarding reservation for SCs, STs, OBC~ Physically 
Handicapped and Ex~servicemen in letter and spiriL As on 3 L03.2(H6, there were 03­
OBC. 02-SC and 0 I~ST employee. 

17. 	 Environment Protection and Conservation, Technological 
Conservation, Renewable Energy Developments, Foreign 
Exchange Conservation 

Environmental protection and conservation, Technological 
conservation: 
The company reco~izes the vital importance of providing safe and healthy 
working environment and it complies with relevant statutory requlrement w.r.t 
Occupational Health and safety within India. 
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The company beJieves sound environmental management enhances our 
competitive strength and benefits by contributing to the overall environment and 
economical well being of the communities we serve. 

Measures taken for environmental protection and eonservation: 

The company has -faeUity for rainwater harvesting pits at the CA Store, Rai 

\",here all the rain waler collected (on roof top of the store and pavement) is re­

charged to the ground. 


Air pollution is arrested by proper installation of chimney of DG Sets as per the 
norms ofPoIIution control board. 

Sound poJJution of DG Sets is avoided by proper installation of Insulated 
canopy. 

Disposal of sewer is made to the HSHOC sewer I.reatment plant" thereby causing 
no ground poUution. 

Water conservation is achieved by using electronic controHers for avoiding 
overflow of 442KL water tanks and timely detection and rectifieation of water 
leakages. . 

FQreign Exchange Conservation: 

FHEL is one of the first companies who had invested in specialized CA Store for 
storage of apples. Encouraged by the suitability of teehnology and associated 
benefits private seetor has seized the opportunity and invested heavily in setting 
up of CA Stores in the country. In last 10 years many faeilities have eome up in 
Delhi NCR and in apple growing states of Himachal Pradesh and Jammu & 
Kashmir. As on date the estimated CA Storage capacity in the country is in excess 
of 1.25 lac MT. This exponential increase in the capaeity has resulted in rather 
stunted growth of imported apples" thereby. conserving precious foreign exchange 
for the country, Despite all these developments the import of apples is still 
increasing exhibiting further growth potential 9f CA storage in the country. 

18. 	 Outlook: 

(i) 	 lndia is a huge country and the market for quality fruit & vegetables is growing 
rapidly. India is the seeond largest producer of Fruits & Vegetables in the 
world and this business is in excess ofnearly Rs. 2.00,000 Crores_ Out of1h:is 
nearly 18% worth of fruit & vegetables perish due to I.ek of Cold Chain 

Infrastructure and' lack of organized distribution and marketing. Hence the 
opportunity available is huge. . 

Page 6 of8 

:If, 

! 

~2b-22Wi&i&!W?&&e:lS8l8 &Ii!&I2li<M'_Ji9JQ~ij&&;zm;;;;:;; lUQUin ~ 



(ii) 	 The country is prospering, leading Lo higher disposable income available in 
common man"s hand. This has fueled the demand for healthier food products like 
Fruits and Vegetables round the year, leading to higher demand for eold chain 
infrastrueture aeross the country, 

(iii) 	 Increasing trend exhibited by the import orFruits and Vegetables, 

(iv) 	 Encouragement to FDI. The foreign companies are bringing the latest knowhow 
in the country thereby creating newer business opportunity. 

19. 	 Risks & Concerns: 

FHEL has identified the possible risks arising in the operations and other key areas 
ofthe company and also formulated risk management Imitigation measures. 

Major risks involved are -: 

(i) 	The business is dependent on weather conditions. particularly rainfall. It can 
be adversely impacted with haiJ storm dllrrng pre-harvest period. 

(ii) 	Unorganized nature of the trade. 
(iii) 	Un-economical small farm holdings 
(iv) Lack of trained manpower 
(v) 	 Local competition 
(v) 	 Unethical practices adopted by private players. 
(vi) 	Differential pricing vis a vis transparent and unifoJ'm poliey adopted by 

PSU·s. 

Implementation of risk mitigation/management measures is reviewed by Audit 
Committee and Board periodically, 

20. 	 CorDQrate SQcial Responsibility (CSR) 
Under CONCORlFHEL's CSR and Sustainability initiative, a project on CSR and 
Sustainability was implemented by The Energy and Resources Institute (TERl) in 
Shimla, Knllu and Kinnaur districts of Himachal Pradesh covering activities like training 
and eapacity building,. exposure 'Visits, distribution of apple planting materials, water 
solutions etc. The project covered more than 250 beneficiaries through training programs 
during the finaneial year 2015-16. Being a loss making entity; FHEL is not mandated to 
incur any expenditure towards CSR in accordance with the prOVisions of Companies AC4 
'2013 and rules made thereunder. 
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21. cautionary Statement 

Statements in the Directors' Report and Management Discussion & 
Analysis, describing the Company's objectives, projections and estimates, 
expectations, predictions etc. may be "folWard looking statements" within 
the meaning of the applicable laws and regulations. FalWard looking 
statements contained herein are subject to certain risks and uncertainities 
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those reflected in 
the fOlWard-looklng statements. Actual results, performances or 
achievements may vary materially from those expressed or implied due to 
economic conditiOns, Government poliCies and other incidental factors 
such as litigation and industrial relation, Readers are cautioned not to 
place undue conviCtion on the forward looking statements. 
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..CONSERVATION.oF ENERGY 

During 	the year '2015-16~ regular in -house Audits: in areas -of Reftigeration and Air Conditioning, 
Compressed Air, Lub-e·Oil System, Lighting, Water BaJancing. Cooling Water System. were c;uried out at 
ControllOd AlmOSph.... (CA) Store, Rai. 

(i) 	 The $fetal's .:of various measures taken during the year under vari~us hea:ds Qf ~nergy. 
Conservation are as.foUows: 

1. POWER CQN§llMPTION FOR REFRIGERATION AND Am CONDlTJONlNG, 

AUXlLARYUNITS 

(a) 	 Energy Saving .screw Com~ressolSand ChiIl(>rS have been installed and used·!be rofrigernlicin of 

CA Store, "_smg Area Air Conditiorcing and Office building. Also, Variable Frequ"""Y 

drives .(VFD&)·h.ve bee~ u,ed.ror Remgeration compressors, Cooling Coil fun motolS (312 . 

motors).Air cooling unit fan motors for Au.. 'tOnditioning (51 motors)~Cooling ~ rap 

mqtors(6 motors),Carbon dioxide scrubbers(12 motors). .. 


(h) 	 Coolin~ towers and Condenser water pumps are operAted ~d ~il ambient conditions'and actual 
re<juirement . ' 

(e) 	 OJ?timization ofRunning ofrefrigeration compressors and air conditi<>:ning system: 
.. 

(d) 	 'Cleaning and replllument ofair iHlen; for air compressors, nitrogen generator compressors and 
dles.1generators. 

'>. 

2, Lighting: 

Erletgy conservation in lighting is a.chieved, by use of Energy efficient tUbe fights. for entire. 

plant, USC ,of CFL)s for office hl;tilding. ~se of electronic ballets, cleaning of li~ fitqo~ for 

optimum util~tion of lights illumination and lighting'voltage optimization, During the year 

special care was taken to'ensure that lights operated only in ~ whefe it WflS.~uired. Area 

ideI)!ified and implemented were External lighting, utility area, corridors, sorting hall, pacl:inlJi 

haJJ, machln~ room. and office building. 


3. a••te.oro:\' 

Loss"/ Gain ofheat energy in eold room is prevented by oJ?timuJ!l thermal insu~ thIckness 

for stores and cladding for pipe lines for minimal heat loss / gainJ cleaning of ~med water .­

tubes, condenser wa.ter tubes and Minimum Infiltration. of external Air to Cold store and 


", 	 pro~sing area by proper sealing ofineoming and exit S:rtes, . 

~ 

z, 

\ 

"­
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-----

4. 	 jrneJ oil;. 

By regular and proper preventive ~intenance' and calibrations of components of diesel, 
. geuerators~ minimum .fuel co~nmptiOn ,is ensured. By·puttlng off Nitrogen genemtor plant, 

forklifts and stacker charging. the load on the DG'is reduced and these equipment are rut' when' 
power supply is available from electricity Boards. . 

5. 	 Water COli cgoliug tgwers and eroces.sine:: 

Water conservation is achieved by use of electronic controllers for avoiding over flow for 442 
KL water tanks, l"e--UsO ofprocessed watet Waste water and fruit washiQg water for horticulture 
and timely detection and rectification ofleakages. 

6., 	Batten ihat2ers ~r material !lpodline: eq}Jmmcnts and other Pll~ 

Chargers are installed with automatie low current charging devices for energy saving. 

Impuct OfmeSUl!U'"I~~Ltnk~n fot,EneOO' CODsmation 

Unit consumed par MT in 2015 ·16 is 62.39 KWH lIS oomp~ to 50.85 KWH in 2014-15,due 
to fo~wing reasons;-	 ' ,. 

The Energy Chitrges tariff increased from Rs.S.SO per unit to Rs.6.1S per unit (w.e.f 
01.04.2015) ­

2 .. The Fixed Chatges tariff increased nom R:i.1489501· to Rs.J68S1dl· (", ••.fOI.04.2015) 

3 	 1n2014·15 openlngStock:Nil &2015 ·16 opening Stock 4869 MT(Outof.4869MT,3825. 
MTWas ofFHBL & 1044MTwas ofollierparti • .,tock till 11·07.2015) 

4 	. Changes in the business model ofthe ""mpllllY only 33 clUUllbers are filled out of 

18 cbBlllbe". 


(ii)Thc steps taken by the /Wmpany forutiJizing aiternate sources ofenergy: NTh 

(iii)1bo capital investment on energy conser:vation equipments: NfL 
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I 

~' 
" 

- , 
" 

", 
Teehnoio/!Y'absOfunon 


i) 
 Bfforlli made towards 
, 

DUe to changed business model ofFHEL,no cfforlli were mllde 
tecMoloJIV abs~~~n, towards l<:<hnoloJIV absorotion 

ill ' The Benefits derived like Due to changed business mode) no direct benefits are: derived to the I 
prOdu,ct hnp(Ovoment, cos! 
"'uct!on, product 

, developmen~ IIIId import 
substitution. 
In ease ofhnported 
technology (import<lti during
tho last 3 Y""'" reckoned 
from the beginning ofthe 

iii) 

financial :year),foJIawmg 
inronn~on may be furnished 

'/-,' (a).DctaiI',ofTechnology 
imported 

.. 
(b),Year of import . 

(c~whether the technology.been fUlly absorbed.. . 
. . (d).Ifhot fully absorbed areas 

where absorption has not 
taken ptac:~ and rdaspns 
Ih...roro. 

(iv) BXnen~ltu... f!!SYWd "ll 
M!! ' 
(I) Capital 
(ii) Roou,;;ng 
(iil)Tolll1 
(i.)ro",l R&D expenditUre as'~ 
• lieroenta•• ofrumover 

company bowever storage in CA is hefping the concerned parties I 
'bUyers, ,

.' , 
. 


, 
 . . 
NA 

" . , 

" . 
NA 

NA . 
" 

NA 
. 

,NA' 

. . 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

._--._-- '-, 

• 
',' 

~" ,. 

• 

~ 

'" 
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, .' "-;/,';'. 	 A,Y\....~')t~
.' : .,. 	 ( FORM No. A{i)C·2 ( 

, " 

• 	 [P.ursuantto dause [h) of sub-section Ci) of section 134 of the ComparuesAct, 2013 and 

\tuleS(2) ofthe Companies (At<:ounls) Rules, 2014 


Form for dlsclol/Ure of partlculars of contracts/arTallgements entered tnto by the company with the relilted parties referred to In sub-sectlon (1) of 
section 188 oftlte companies Act. 2013 including certain arms-Iength traniI.ctlons underth!rd proviso thereto. . . ' 

1. Details ofcon~ or arrangements or transactions notat arm's length basls: ­

S, Salient fe.tures of Amount Date on whichNiune of 
"" 

Duration,Na~re.. of Justlfication--l Date' of 
pal~ . as No, the, contractsNrrange of contracts/arrange for entering approval by special 
advance.related inte such the resolution wasments/transactions contracts finenls/transactlo 

party and tlS, including contracts/Ar Board/Audit SI ifany passed in/arrange 
nature 	 of value, ifany committee. gerieralrangementslments/tra, 

relations transa<:tio~ meeting u/snsactions 
hip 1SB(ll(1l1 _.. ._.._­ ~~~~~NIL 

IN 2. Details ofcontractsot arrangements or transactions atarm's length basis:­
1'9 

[ $, [ Name of the related Nature of Duration of Salient features of 
No, contracts/arrangem 	 contracts/nrra contracts/arrange 

ents/transactions 	 ngements/tran ments/tranSllctlon 
..etlons s, including, value,

1-1 no"I ContainerUnsec~red Woddng 270 days from Sanctioned an 
Corporation of Capital Loan taken the date· of amount of Rs1.90 

1 lnllia Ltd. ' 	 -sanction of emre with an 
(Holding Company) loan.lnterest 8.51% p.a. 

OUt of Rs.MS 
crore has 'heen 
withdrawn. 

12 	 1. cantatae,' Unsecured Working All amount of Rs, 
Corporation of Loan Refund 12,89,77,383/­
mdt. Ltd. (Holding refunded duiing 

1... .. 	 • .... "'.......................,' E<"._"....il...." bd._"X"""'''", 


Date of Amount paid as Date on 
approval by advances,lfany special resolution 
the was, passed in 
Board/Audit 	 general meeting 

N/A 

CDNCOR's 
BOD Meeting 
Hem1.n 
25/01/2016 
& Agreement 
Dt:08.03.2016 

MIA 


~/ 	 'l9, 
"''"u._W''......ii.''. ., __............
_ .............._ 	 u .... 




~.~~. , All amount of~.' p.~:, Container Ilnlllrest pn Loan· 'ilIA N/A( (,. . Corporation of . Rs.3.o7.96.188/· 


, lttdla Ltd. (Holding 
 due dutlng the 11.Y. 

Z015-16. 


4 ~:::!?hnterestPald 
 All amount of N/A 
Corporation of 

N/A 
Rs.1.4S.64,s32/· 


India Ltd. (Holding 
 paid during the 

Comminv) . 
 d " " F.Y.2015'16 


5 Container . 
 All amount of 'II/A 'II/AI'IDS deducted on 
Corporation of inlllrest on loan Rs.30.79.624/· 

llidla Ltd. (Holding 
 deducted . during 

Comnanvl 
 the F.Y. 2015·16 


6 Container 
 Lease Rent on All amount of 'II/A 'ilIA 
Corporation of Plastk Bins Rs.1,13,7:L07Of­"" 
India Ltd. (H~ld\ng due on account of 
Company) lease rent of 

piastlc bins during 
. the F.Y.2015-16


I7 " Container \ .' Lease Rent on All . amount of 'II/A 
 'ilIA 
Corporation of Plastic Bins paid i Rs.1,1l.43,648/­ .Cd India Ltd. (Holding Ipaid on account of 

Company) lease rent of 


plastiC bins during 

f-;;---'I-;;--:--;-----\=;-;;--;--;-.,-,,--+ ......___--j the F.Y. 2015-16. 

8 Container i TDS deducted on An amount of 
 N/A M/A 

Corpora,!on of lease rent of plastic Rs.2,2i ,422/­
India Ltd. (Holding bins deducted on 
Company] account of TDS 

. ·durtng the P.Y. 

I--l . I 2015·16. \ // I I·m 
19 I Container Balance of I IRs.31.45.00.000/­ II/A N/A 

Corporation of Unsecured loan at 
. India Ltd. (Holding the end Of F:'l.2015· 


wCompanvl . 16 I I I 
 I 
110 I Container Interest Accrued & ~'Rs.11.zz.13.736/. I IMIA. I 'ilIA 

Corporation of due at the End of . " 
India Ltd. (Holdlng RY.2015-16 

J C0l!1nanv1 . I .. ~___-L__-'-__'--____.....n_nn..... 

0/
Iw....A _.. ~.......,........._ 


1 



FORM NO. MGT 9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 


As on finandaJ year ended on 31.03.2016 

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company 


(Management& Administration) Rules, 2014 

I, REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS, 


i, l'ICIN 
: 2. Registration Date 

3.! Name ofthe Company 

U51909DL2006GOl145734 
01.02,2006 
MIS. FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISRS I,IMITED (A WHOLLY 
OWNED SUBsmlARY OF tONTAINBR CORPORATION OF 

,'I INDIA LTD,) 

4. cat.egoryISub~category • GOVERNMENT COMPANY .
ofthe Company, , 

I 	 5. Address of the CONCOR BHAWAN, C· 3, MATHURA ROAD, NEW DELHI­, 
, Registered office & 110076. 

,
, 	 contact detaIls TeL ,011-41673093·96,
, Fax. , 011·41673112 


Website; www.fheJ.co.in 

6, Whether listed company NO 

7. Name.Addr'ess& ' NIL I, contact details oftbe I, 

Registrar & Tnlnsfer 	 " 
,, 	 Agent, jfany. ,, 

, 

II. 	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTMTJES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 
% or more of the total turnover of the company) 

So No. 	 "Name and Description of main : NrC Code of the % to total turnover of the 
products I services ; Product/service company 

,
1 	 Sale of apples, procured during 10309 , 82% 


last year from Sh!mia & Klnnauf 

, 

areas of Hitnadtal Pradesh, 	 ,, ,
dUring off-season after storage in , 

Controlled Atmosphere store at ! 
Ra~ Sonepat. ,,, ...­

2 Leasing of CA (Controlled I 52101 16% , 

atmosphere) Chambers 


,, 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND 

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES ­ ... ... .....~ ~ 

NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of Applicable I, 
ADDRESS OF SUBSIDIA shares 

S, THE, 	 ' RY held Section .
NO COMPANY 


/ASSOCIAT 

,E 


,.1 ONTAINER r630110U988 !"OLDING co. . 100 2(87) 


ORPORATlO" OF 01039915 


NOIAtTD. 	 ,,I 	 , 

3~ 


--'-'­

http:www.fheJ.co.in


()! 

~ (JV) SHARE !lOLDING PA'ITE1lN (Equity SbaN Capital Breakup as pmenlage ofTotal EqUIty) 

\lJ ,-"nI;'lK'J~Y-WG>e' <')11<:1.1 C (lUIUlU 

CateEOry of No. of Shares held at the beginning of -No. of Sbares held at.the end oftheyear[As: . % 
Shareholders the year[As on 31-Marcl1-2015\ on 31-March-2016j Chan~ 

D Physical Total % ,Dem I Physical Total % ' .e 
- of of ; durin e . . at' , , 

m Tot ' , Tot ,I. g,. 
al I .l thee , 

t , She Sha I year 

f--_-~ 
: res I res) 

A. Promoter s , 

'1i) indian 
-

: aJ Individual/ - - - . - -, 

IIUF I. , . . 
b) centrnl Govt -

... ­
oj Slate GOYl(s) : 

d) Bodies Corp. 
. ­

; eJ Ilm1ks I F! , 

1 !) Any other 
, 

, ­ U,56,67,721 ; 14,56,67,721 100 - i 14,56'l\?,721 . 14.56,67,121 100 NU , 
; Government 

, ' -. 
, , , 

Company­
, 

Container 
, , 
, 
, 

Corporation of . 
,, 

India Ltd. I 
-Sub·total (Al" - 14,56,67,721 I 14,56.61,721 100 - 14,56.67,721 14.56.67.721 100. : Nil , I 
(1) , , . i .. 

(2) Foreign I , .... ­
aJ NRIs> I : 

, 
, I

lndividu I ,. , , 

al. I , 
, 

b) Other , -, 
indlvldu . . 

als 
, 

: . -._. ­,
c) Bodies I- , , 

Corporat , 
, 

e I , 

I--dj Banks{F 
, . 

I 
-, ,, 

I I 
ej. Any 

, 

other 
, 

I -- ­
SUb-total (AI , 

(2) ,,. . , ­ . . - . . 

35 
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2· 

Tol7l1 - 14,56,67,721 14,56,67,721 100 - 14,56,67,n1 14,56,67,7Z1 100 Nt'. 

sbareholdlng of 

Promotor (AJ. 

A(l) +A(llJ 

B.Publlc , 
Sb....holdlDg , . . 
1. Institutions 

aJ MutualFuntls , 
.... ­

I bJBanks/FI 

; c) Centrnl Govt , 
, 

Id) Stat. GO\'l(s) 

; e) Venture 

Icapital Funds 
, , .. 

, . 

f) Insurance . 
, 

-Companies . , 
I 

g) FII, I ,, , . 
h) Foreign 

I 
. 

. 
I Venture CApital , 

Funds 

1) Others 
, 

, 

(specify) I . 
Sub-tol7l1 , , 
(Il)(l):­

, 
, 

J 
, , 

, ' I 
t.Non· - ' - , - -- - - - . , 
Instltnllons 

,, , 
a Bodies Coro. 

Indian , 

I OVerseas 
, ,, 

b Individuals I 
I) Indlvl<lual , . 

, 
shareholders , . 

holding nominal 
share capita] 
unto Rs.llakh . 
iij Individual , , 

shareholders . , 

holding nDmJnaJ 
share capItal in 
excess ofRs 1 
lakh 
c)Others , ,, 

I , 

SUb'tol7l1 . I . lmlm:. i 

0\,. 


,,"Y_'if; 
.-~----. 



Cl' . ... --r0lai Public --
 -· 
S ...... holdlng 

~~~~)(1)+ 
. · . .. . . ~ .:;'C. Shares held •-

byCustodIan 
forGDRs& 

,ADDs 
,Nil14.56.61.721 ,'14.56.67.721~dTotal 100100 " i 14.56,67.721 /14.56.67.721 


£A+B+CL 

· ' I 

~ 

" 

'- ­

".. 
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~'I 
1IJ :;rmrenOlWll£ or t'romor;ers ~ 

%ch,mgeinShareholding at the beginning oiibe IShareholdlng at the end of the year·SN Shareholder's . . 
shareh<lldingyear iName 
during theNo, of Shares %01%01No. ofShares ' %01 %of 
yeartoml SharesSharestot>! 

. Share, Pledged IShares of Pledged I 
. the ofthe ! encumberenrumbe 

campa :'edtototal coMpany! red to 
, total ny i shares 

I; sha'res 
. CONTAINER : 14,56,67.721 ; 100 - : 14-,56,67,721 100 NIL1 -

•CORPORATION 
.OF INDIA LTD. 

(A PSU UNDER •:.MINim\" OF 
:• ,RAILWAYSl 

iii) CIIangeln Promote.... Shar.holdlng (pIe...speci(y, if there Is no cMnge) 


SN 
 Particulars : Sh.aroholding at the Cumulative Shareholdlng ---: , , .: beginning of the year during the year 
%oltotal ''Mo. ofshares % oftotal! , !~o, of shares 

. 
Atthe beginnln$ of the year 
Date wise Increase / Decrease jn 
Promoters Shareholding during 
the year ~pecilYing the reasons 
for increase r decrease [eg. 
allotment - Itransfer I bonusl 
sweat equity etc.) 

14,56,67,721 100 
Nil Nil 

. 

,
: . ,, 

I j 
At the end of the year 

' ­

,,, 

14,56,67.721 
Nil 

. 

14,56,61.721 

shares of 
the 
company 
100 

: Nil 

, 

100 

shares of the 
company 

114,56,67.721 1100 -_ .. _-­

tv) sbarebolding Patte-m oHop ten Sharebolders: 
(Other,than Directors, Promoters and HoJde:rsofGDRs snd ADRs): 

Forl,.& oethe Top.tO Clunui'atlve SbarehoJdingSbare~!ding at tb:eSN 
beginning during the 
of the year 

Sharebolders . 
year 

, No.ofshares : % of total No..ofshares : %oftotaJ· 
,,, : sharesof _: shares of, , ,,, 

thei the . . , ,, , _!wmpany , company 
At the beginning of the year I 14,56,67,721 I 100 -.1 14156~67,721 100 

,,Nil I Nil Onte wise Incr~e I Decrease in I Nil ; Nil ,: ,Shareholding _ during the y ­ , ,, 
i speCifying the reasons for i~ase; 

I I 
, 

!: Idernase (e.g.•Uotmen' I transfer II. , ,, 


; bonus/ ~eat equi~ ~tc): ­

':)3 

----". 
£ ,:i;iJiki&U2ZiOI4itU.s!#'~;;;;;;Z;;;;:Z:;~.&W'JJ!iWliIWi5iltlJdl!&&\>~,...,. 



pL'
tilteend .flbeyear [oron thed.t.Il:6'67.7~14;56.67.7J 1~1 

[]. ;~:arntiOn'fsseparateddu:~gthe ..~-~___.L__llc~__~~ . ~.~__..JI 
v) Sbareholding ofDfrectors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

SN Shar, 
each 

. 
At the beginning of the year 
Date Wise lncrease 

cnt I 

. Share 
there 
allotn: 
<qult} 

..~ At tho 
!tc.): 

,boJdto"'g".f"e"'.-;cia ,Directors and ISharehoJdlngat the 
'. 

CUl 

Sh, 
the 

Y~.-
No. 
sha 

Nil 
Nil 

. Nil 

Key Managerial Personnel beginning 
. , of the year ' . 

.~.-

No, of % oftotal 
shares shares of 

the 
.tomp'any 

Nll Nil 
I Decrea; :.iD!Nil , , Nil 

oIding dulingthe year spe ymg 
sons for increase /decrease (e.g. 

transfer I bonus/ neat 

Nil-Nilend-ofthe,yc::.r,-·___ - ..•~.~- •. 

;1I1ative -----rreholding:j 

f-n.oftntal ! 

res, Ishares of ! 
I	:'pany , 

Nil 1 
Nil 

.. d
, 

VJ INDEBTEDNESS wlni:tebtedness of the Company includIng jnterest outstandlngJaccJued but not 
due for payment. . 

! fRs.ln Lakbsl 

~~udre~ Loans . Unsecured I0 .. Total 
I;:M..I 109 	 eposlts
d Loans Indebtedness 

.--------. ­ .g1nnl~g;rf'E"si.~c . - I" 	 ­fndebtednessat the b 4
the finantlal year . oPrincipal Amon,nt_ rNil-C-·~.--11""4289.71 : Nil I 4289.71 


U) Interestdue but not 
paid--::'~. ! NIl.~ : .1990.:62 I~---tg90.62r:f.c;~'~-'~----
iii) Interest accrued ~ .t not due Nil : .. w.". Nil _n i 

. Total (i+ll .jll) Nil 5280.39 Nil 5290.39 
~;duringthe - I ~',' , , ­Change In Indebtedn 

_cia! y.... .~. 
__._~~.-. . Nil ~-+i45.00 Nil IHsd';~<!dltiOn 

·~uction Nil '-TI2B9.77 Nil .12B9.77 

Net Change~~ 
~ 

'-~~f1.-~ (1144.77) ., Nil ~-1J1144.77) 

Indebtedness at theeJ
~~. .~. 	 i
financial year 
i) Principal,Amount ___~Nil' ~_~__. 3145.00 JNil' J3145.00 
ToI~terestdu.butnotiJ;ai<l.~_ . Nil ._c2:122.14 Nil , 1122,14 
'lli)ln'eresta<crued but not due . Nil •• Nt! 

.__Tobll (1+11+ 	 Nil~-- ..J_4267.14 -f"'NC:i"'l~.-+-4c267.14io:=::=._· 

'31 
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"\ ' - , 
VLIlEMUNIlRATIONOFDIRECTORSANDKEYMANAGElllALPERSONNIlL- . 

, A:Remuneradon to Managing D1rectot. Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: NIL 

, 

. 

' ­

SN. Part1cularsofRemuneration Name ofMDJWTDJ Manager Totiil Amount-
. .~~~ -.-- -.. .• 

1 ' G""", saIaIy _----1-,__"-..,_I(a) _ry'as perprovisions ! .' 
- -_. 

, contained Insec;tlon 17(1) ofthe 
- :. 

, .. Inm~e-taXAct, 1961 ' I I 
(b) Value ofperquisites uls 17(2) 

, 
, 

IInccme-tax Act. 1961 
, . [e) l'rpfits in lieu of sal,!), under , 

, section17(3)lncome-taxA<t,1961 ' ! ===dStock Option . ,- ,-- -
2 . 

, '-
" 

. 
3 s~IiquJt¥ ,-c-' 

, 

'4 COmmlsSlon --,-; 
"";%ol'profit 

! 

i , 
• oth.Jm!.dlll~QiY~ ,.-

S .. , ~~EI..... spe!')fy 
.~-

'. , .:......... 
I,Total(Al , 

-~--~ ,---~-

cerunK@l'ertheAct L..... 

:8. RemUneration to other directors 

Name of Directors .-~TotarAmou~t.·I$N·I=:=tI~n -~ !(Rupeesfn .I ' " '.' .J..I-'khs). I 
I -1.1ndependent.Dire8:0rs -!-"Silrl pradeep IShri _( Shrl M: P. I ~ 

BhatDagar Sudhlr Sborawala , I· ,Mathur I I !'Fee ru-r-atten.,- I...:.....dfC"n-gb"'oard-'-·cl.-1.00 . 11:10-"­ 2.10' " 4.20 .. ! 
~ 

/cOJ11mittee rneetings 
Commlssion Nil- Itd- Nil -rNfl ' :;;jNil : Nil Nil. . '.Others, please specIfY Nil. '., .". ." 

\.... L ! Total (1) ." . '. . 1.00 1.10 .2.10 !4.:w "T-'>,{ ",.,. 
r 2, Other Non-Executive .'.. 

DIrectors. 

;::;::.n!:ti~-iNIi Nil, rl! LNiI ,___ 
Qi~S~on~~_. --'+Nil Nil - I ,i~i; . ,. 

I· I Qt!lers, please;specify ..Nif Nil I ;;~ 
Total (2) .' Nil . Nil UnI 
-::::=;.~ '" . "'--,- ­
ITotal (B,P(1+2) 1.0P· 1.10 1'<'"" 


Total Managerial 1.00 1.10 - ." 

Reniunerat1~n 

I OVefaJl Ceiling ",ljie, the N.A. - 'NA 

l.Act .,.' "' 
 .~,..~,-

40 
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN 

MD/MANAGER/WTD 

SN Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel .__. 
• CEO· CS CFO* Total• 

1 Gross salary 18,30,307/­ 12.41,213/­ 20,07,015/­ 50,78,535/­

~~.-~..... 
(a) Salary asper provisions 17,44,900j­ 12,30,461/, 19.73.445/­ 49.48.8W· 
contained in section 17(1) of the ·•• 
lm:ome-tax Act, 1961 

(b) Value of perquisites ujs 17(2) 85407/.. 10,752/.. 33;570j­
.:~.. 

1.29.729/­
Income-tax Act. 1961 :. 

(e) Profits in lieu ofsalary under Nil Nil Nil Nil 
section 17(3) Income-tax Act. 1961 

2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil 
...... 

3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil .._-.... 
4 Commission Nil Nil i Nil Nil 

- as % of profit Nil Nil Nil Nil 
others, specify.,. Nil Nil Nil Nil ----------------­ -tjj............ 

5 Others. please specify NlI Nil Nil : 
Total 

00­
1 18,30,307/­ 12.41.213/­ 20.07.015/­ 50,78.535/.. 

_~-L............._ 

.. RemUneration is being paid by CON COR (Holding Company) 

VII, PENALTIES I PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES ..Cc"..... 
Section of the Brief Details of ! Authority Appeal madelType 
Companies Description ifany(givePenalty I • [RD I NCLTI 

Details)Act Punishmentl ! COURTl 
Compounding 
fees imposed 

..-'-"" ­
• A. COMPANY 

__ M.____ ... 
• , NIL 

~. 

: Penalty !NIL NIL 
~ 

NIL NIL : 
...,..." · 

NIL; Punisbment NIL NIL NIL NIL 
- · Nil, NILCompounding NIL NIL I NIL I 

!I_ DIRECTORS 
....­

, Penalty NIL NIL 

, Punishment NIL Nil, 

i Compounding . NIL 
• 

Nil, 

I::~m__ .. ·::~ NIL 
.~.... 

NIL 
•I .....-' 
: NIL NIL NIL ._.... 

· 

·• 

• C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT , 

• Penalty I NIL 

Punishment I NIL 

Compounding I NIl. 

NIL 

NIL 
~.-

NIL 

, NIL NIL NIL . 
-~"NIL 

.~. 

NIL NIL 

Jr"L NIL NIL 
......_--­ ---'----_. --------~.... 

i 
I 

Forand on behalf ofBoard of Directors 

Sd/­
(Anil Kumar Gupta) 
Chairman 

Date, 27.01.16 
Place: New Delhi 

4\ 
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AKHIL ROHATGI AKH[L ROHATC;.I!: COMVANY. 
M.Com. LL.B. F.eS. Company $el:fi."l<'!ri.::. 

21, Shamn;nh Mllfg. (-;,·iI Line>o.. 
Owl!!i··· J 10054, 
PfiOM : 2J9265~. <)X W(j'JOG3.t 

b;-.. _ Email: rohft!giJ(>_~.:~")@y.3h.;.).:.).itl 

CEATJFJCATE 

Tathe Members of 
FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPR 

.. ,~. 

We have examined the complier )f~@nditjons of Corporate Governance 
by Fresh 8. Healthy Enterpri"'l~ . for the year ended 31" March, 
2016 as stipulated in the ~leJiries on Corporate Gover-:,}nce for 
Central Public Sector Enter. by the 'Department Gf Public 
Enterprises', Minisliy of lustries and Public Emerprises, 
Government of India. 

The compliance of condi~~,:of·' Corporate Governancv is "le 
responsibility of the Managem~~~.. Our examination was Lmi'"-, j k the 
procedures end implementati6b'ttliereof, adopted by the Co,': any for 
ensuring the compliance of the/~hditions of Corporate Govelflat-'.:e. ;::5 
neither an audit nor an expressiQlii Qf opinion on the financial Ste:: ~:";;r;t;: :Jf 

,the Company, 

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and infor:r:c,,:ion r",d 
according to the explanations given to us, we certify \h~t the Co:.",,': ;'"S 
compiled with the conditions of Corporate Governance as st:pjJ!~, ~! i:, the 
above mentioned guidelines on corporate governance iSSL;~:·., by ~l~e 
'Department of Public Enterprises'. 

We further state such complia~~Il!r;ne1ther an assurance as to further 
viability of the Company nor the,;~ffl'6l~ncy or effectiveness · .....lih ":[I;e!! ::;e 
management has conducted the,~~irsioJ Ihe Company. 

,:1~ie~~>(': For Akhil Rohal,; :':0. . 
,," ''.:;' \' / 1'~,,', -r\ , ( \ II/:;'"'- ., . '~'~i '"0-~ \ \o\" """·I'I5.!'.··""·",,,·.:·

';', 
, "it\- ' '...", t"--' r/~ . \Zt', .. -, .... 

\\J "'. ," ""\1'• ,., \' '-(C~:,~;~~,-,,!:., \:~'" '~." ': 
Place: New Delhi (Akhil Rohat .. ::· .>" 
Date: 17.05.2016 :'{!:'~, Company Secretary;:, '?rt . .:llca 

" ,~:~. F,C.S: 16t 
CP. No. 23·. 

:~l,~,:: . 

.,.'fi::~f!;."ir'<!'~'.!~\'" ,',' 
""~','J'; ..... , 

':;~:}I2.. 

~~J3.ii'9-'!\~,~iQ§ki9"0::&MZ~-::::ZXW::;'~i~i"JWll;::;;::WZ'-":'&::~ 
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, 

Kumar Tripathi & Associates 
Company SeC,retaries 

secretarial Audit Report , 
(For the period ended on 31/03/2015) 


[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appolntment and Remuneration of Managerial PCf5Oflnel) Rules, 2014] 


To, 
lhe Members, 
Fresh &. Healthy Enterprises Limited, 
Coru:or 8hawan C-3 Mathura Road, 
Opp Apollo Hospltal, New Delhi-11Q075 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the COfnI:dianre of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practk:es by Fl"e.$b & Healthy Enterprises Limited {hereinafterCatled 
the Company) a wholly owned subSidiary of Container Corporation of India limired an Indian 
Government Company_ Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that proVIded us a reasonable 
basls fOT evaluatlng the corporate <;Ollductsjstatutory compiiaflccs dnd expressing OlJr opinlofl 
thereon. Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books. forms and returns filed and 
other rec.urds: maintained by the company and also tJle Information provided by the company, it's 
Q~rs, agents and autl10rlzed representatives during the conduct: uf secretarial audjt, we hereby 
report that in our opinion, the oompany has, during the audrt period ended on 31/03{2016 complied 
with the stat:urory provisions listed hereunder and also that the companj' has proper Doa(d-processe~; 
and oompliance-mechanism in prace to the extent,. in the manner and subject: to the repor:ing made 
hereinafter: 

1. 	I have extlmined the books, paperS, minute books, forms and returns filed and other reo;)rds 
maintained by Fresh & Healthy Enterprises limibW ("The company") for the periOd ended on 
31/03/2016 according to the provisions of; 

i. 	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder. 
ii. 	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act 1956 ('SeRA') Bnd the Rules made thereI.lnder~ Not 

Appll<:>ble 
iii. 	 The Depositories Act. 1996 and the Regulations i1nd Bye-laws framed thereunder- Not. Applicable 
iv. 	 Foreign Exchange Management Act:, 1m and the Rules and Regulations mode thcfeurn!er to me 

extent of Foreign Direct lnvestment, Overseas Direct lnvestmer..t and External Commercial 
Borrowings- Not Applicable 

v, 	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities: ilnd Exchange Board of 
Ind!a Act, 1992 (,SEBI Act) to the extent applicable to the Compao,·: 

a. The Sea..llities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulationsj 2011- NotApplicaole 
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of Jndia (Prohibition of Inside- Trad:nq: Regulations, 
1992- Not Applk:able 
c. The Secunl'ies and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capita! dod Disclosure Requirements) 
Re9ulations, 2009- Not Applicable 
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employe? Stock oprlOo Scheme ~nd 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999~ Not Appllcab!e 
e. The Securities and Exchange Soard of Jodia (lssue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 200Sw Not Applicable 

Office- 238, 1St Floor, Opposite Satsang Shawan Shrv Mandjr, Chirag Oe1l1', New oeil1i-l !0017 
Contact No,: 011-40513476, +91, 852:7087435, Email;ktapcs@fP.ail.com 

KUMAR 
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Kumar Tripathi & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

!,.,. 

of!ke. 238,. 1St Floor, OPPOSite Satsaog Bhawao Shiv Malll)r, Ch!cag Delhi, N"w Delhi-' tOOt7 
Contact No.: 011""l0513476, +91- 8527087435, Email: ktapcs@gma::.com 

4~ 

'uZ £ ..._>=~x_wos:s:.&~~~ !l XA£J$$)$)J&!A4PM4A0A ..~.&iii&RJAA 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (RegistKlrs to an lssue i3nd Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies ,Act and dealing with client~ Not 
Applicable 
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009· 
Not Applicable and 
h. The Serurtties and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of SeCUrities) Regulations, 199e. Not 
Applicable 

vJ. Compflante of gutdelilleS Issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE). 
vii. The Agricultural ProdIJQ') Marketing Act, 1998 
viii. Food safety and Standard of Ind!a Actj 2011 
ix, "T'tJe legal Metrology Act • 2009 
x. PoRutiOn laws as applicable, 
xi. Labour La>.'YS as a pplicab2e, 
xii. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Pooventian, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013 
xiii. Secretarial Standard Issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

During the period under review the Company has compJied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Gukle1ines etc. <15 mentioned abQve. 

I further report: that the l3o.'trd of Directors of the Company i$ duly constituted wi~h pwper balance of 
non~executive directors and independent directors. The changes iii the composition of the Board of' 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in ccmpllance with the 
provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notke is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, ;;genda and detailed nores 
on agenda were sent at least seven days In advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and darifi(:ations on the agenda items before the meeting and f('f meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views arc captured and recorded 
as part of the minutes. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company comlHensurate with 
the me and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance: with appllc-,,'ole lAWS, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 

Date: 1710512016 For Kumar Tripathi & Associates 

Plate: New Deihl COmpany secretaries 


DEEPAK ?2P=-~=",",< 

_'''''''O~'","", ...._

KUMAR ~;::::!:"....,..,-'~"'-. 
Oeepak. Komar, Pai'thm.....·"',.. ~,' 
M. No.-23&73, CP NO.-.1l372 

(This report is lD be n:iJ(i with ourfetter ofeven date which is ilf}nexed as Anaexure A imd forms an 
inlEgnl/p;ut ofIJJIs report.) 
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Kumar Tripathi & Associates 
Company 8«retarie. us 

Annexure A 

TO, 

The Members, 

Fresh &, Healthy Enterprises limited. 

Conror ehawan, C-3 Mathura Road, 

Opp. Apollo Hospitalf New Delhl-1l0076, 


Our report of even date is to be read afong with this letter . 

. 1, f.'aintenance of seaetarlal rocon:I is the responsibllit}l of the management of the company. 

Our responsibility is to eltpress an opinion on these secretarial records based on Qur audit. 

2. 	 We have followed the audit praCtice.s and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretariat records. The veriflcation 

W<lS done on rest basis to ensure the correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We 

believe !.hat the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for out 

opinion. 

3. 	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of finanCial records and books of 

accounts of the company. 

4. 	 Where ever required we have obtained the management representation about compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. 	 The compliance of the provisiOns of corporate and other applicable 13\\'$, rules, regulations 

standards is responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the 

verificatiOn of the procedure on test basis, 

6. 	 The sec.retarial audit report In neith\!r an assurance as to' the future viability of the company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the company. 

For Kumar Tripathi & Associates 
Date: 17/05/2016 Company Secretaries _........""""'­
Place: New Deihi 	 DEEPAK KUMAR~~S-~-=" 

---;:"'~""...,. 

Deepak Kumar, Partner 
M. 	 No.-23673, CP No." Inn 

Office- 23B~ 1st FIoar, O~ Satsang 'ehawan Shiv Mandir, elltrag Delhi, New Oelh!-U0017 
Contact No.: 011-4(1513476, +91- SSl7QB7435, Emell: ktapcs@gmail.com 
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,, 	 [REiSH II! HEALTHY EHTERPRISE§ LIMlTED , 
PRDFrr AND LOSS SIATEJdB:N1' FOR THE YEAR E.t!J>EP 31.03.2016 cie;:. I 

.;'f!;-~ I 
(Ra. la r..khot).~~tl: 


\~.~: 

" ,., 	 ltot.1fo. 31.03JW16 3i.t)3Jl015-, 	 ........ AwII... 


, , Revenue rrwu Operations 	 2,360.66 3,213.76•
" Other Inoame 10 S4.61 7'1.71 

III 'toW a_DUO {l+ll) , 
IV 


Pun:hases ofTmded Goods 102.71 

Change I.n Inventories 11 3,083..!ID 
-	 }
Dfre,:!; ExpeJ1eee 541,00 1,139,92 
EmplOYR Beneli~ ~naea 12 175,:25 190,63 
Finatu::e Coats 307,96 663.35 
Deslftciatton and AmtlrtiuUion ExpmBe$ 536.74 535.96 
Other &peI'lSe!J 13 210.11 213.99 

,~e,018.0'l 4.133.'18 , --	 1 
V 	 Pro!!t IleIim: c:m:pUGlUU and cxtnwn11I'le.ry 


ittmB and Tax all - iV) 


VI 	 Eu»ptiOneJltemB 

VlI Profit Before e&'tn:Wrdinary items and tax I";VJ) 	 [2,602,60) 

VIII Euraordinruy Items 

1X 	 Prollt t..tore 'l'aIIt fVll- V1It} 

X 	 T",,_ 
(I) CurrmtT!:tx 
~)Da~Tex 

(3) ~Adjuauunt for Prior Periods 

XI 	 Profit I (truIJl)lbr the period fmm continuing opt:nuJons ('IXwX) (2,602.60) 

XI' Profit! (toM) from dfucontlnuing operations 

XI" Tux E:l:pense of di!l(Ootinuing opemtiona 

XIV PrntitJ {Loss!: £rom dlscontinuins aperaHona oat,.J(l[l) 

XV 	 PntJlt/(Lou) tor w porlo4 fXl + XlV) 

, XVI _ "","'''''_1
11)8a$le 	 (1.79) 
(2) Diluted 11.1'9) 


, 1"lplfiCIUI.t Acccututa poUolb 
 ,." 
t to lIS form. _ .Lu.tllpal pNt olthe __tt 

fO'r u.4 Oil IaballofEqud of l)lnJotora 

~~ -- ~,eref'~- M"~ 
Suman Lata 

4.1­

http:2,602.60
http:cxtnwn11I'le.ry
http:3,213.76
http:2,360.66


/i:!!l!I!" .. HEALTI!X !!!!~ !Jl!m:!!;!! 

BOT~~TO Aqcomrrs . 

, 
31.03.2016 

A...... 

caplW 
ehtuworRo.10/- each) 

Ilssued. Su~d & Pald-up Share CapItal {·l 
" 14,56,61,721 Equity Shares {P'Y: 14..56,67.72tjofRa.lO/.eacl; fulfypaid~upl 

cie 
tRL .......... , 


31.~015....... 


·ot< 
'.;0% shares are hcld by Container mrporation 01 tndia 1M {Holdingrotnpan.Yj. 

stwcs held by BhlUdlolderu holdtng more than 5% aharea 
, 'DartboU.H ' 

M/s Container Corporation or India Ltd. {nos.l 14,56,61,121 14,56,61;721 
Percentage of shares held 

(100%1 (100%1 

1, 

Ili?Ci'C"':N:. 
c,.,:.\W.:;:. 
\·.-.-.~1~,.W/.F," -' Y," ___ .,,-. 

',,;<:,;-~,:,"', .. 

, , 

4!", 

____~ _0001J6 5!JW;G&Z&Z!ARzt~J84.ilI'!I!Z;Z:;Ai!l"'-ijj;gG.~~~~ 

http:Holdingrotnpan.Yj
http:14..56,67.72tjofRa.lO


• 
FRESH lI& HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIlIIlTED 


NOTES TO AOOOYHTB 


Additlonl 
'Particulanl: 01.04.2015 ded.uction! 

Audit.... appropriation 

NOTE 2 , RESERVES AND SlJ'RPl.U$ 

Seeurlt!e. Premium Re8uve 95.23 


Surplus (Proflt and Lou Account) 


Opening Balance (11,435.95) 

Leas: Adjstroent ofAssets lU:serve prey YearG 


I I	Profit/{Loss) after Tax: for the period (2.602.60) 
C16sing Balance 

111,340·'721 12,602.601ITotal 

.."~. ,\~::::~'.>j}" 
.,I 'I ~tA'rm1' {.". \" d. ""'I IT'" " 
','. ',:- \. ,. ':ft~Xff;H r-·.:_. -;:,<'.1:/,:" .' 

, 

, 


c$e 

1R,a. In Lakhal 

Aaat 
31.03.2016 

Audited 

95.23 

(14.038.55) 

113,943.321 

~' , 

, 

Lf\ 

:;:;;;.;mb_l!iili1itW&li§lij!J$l!IlMlml'f$$@2J§;$!!!i4U5i11ia$AAff,kl£i4M'>S1'W&f.Mi 

mailto:mb_l!iili1itW&li�lij!J$l!IlMlml'f$$@2J�;$!!!i4U5i11ia$AAff,kl�i4M'>S1'W&f.Mi
http:14.038.55
http:2.602.60
http:11,435.95
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FREsH &. HEALTHY ~T1mPRISES~~ cie
HOTES TO ACCOUIITS 

, 

, 
(Ra. In LaIduI) 

Partleulara 31.03.2016 31.03.201& 
_d Audited 

NO'I'E 4: CURR.&n LIABILITIES 
Shutt Term Botrowhtp 
Looos Repayable gn OemW']d from Banks 
{Secured against hypotheeatiun ofall current assets both present and future) 

,
Lotut& and Advances from Related Party 
Container Corporation or India Ltd. (Holding Co,; Unsecured) 3.145.00 4,2$9.77 

'l'rade Payable• . ../ 
• Micro & Small Enterprises 
• Others 1~.56 148.78 

opier Cuuel1t LlahWtie8 
Current Maturities ofLong Term Debt 

interest Accrued & Due on BOrTowingij 1,12:2.14 990.6:2 
Advanee/Dtpoeits from parties 111.98 136.49 
Statutoty Uabi1i~ 
Others 98.69 139.33 

Short Term. Ptvvidtnul 
Provision fur Employee Benefits 14.04 3.92 i 
Total 4,507.41 8,708.91 

-_... 

, 
';.,~ ,,-. ~ 

[: [i/ir:r~\<\
" ". , (VI"' \ \""~ .._: .\ ~._'. I;' '_~~ 

< -:-./~.' 

J' 

51 

MiW;;wn ;&'Jifiiiibl:@_::;:'A&4li\&ir9?~ lj~~~ 

http:8,708.91
http:4,507.41
http:1,12:2.14
http:4,2$9.77
http:3.145.00
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_~~!ffi!'!lI~J._ 'cie 
NOTES TO'ACCOUNTS 

iPirrticnJa;n 31.03.2016 
AltdJtc4 

(RI. Ja .t..alIIb} 

31.G3.2015......, 

iNoTE. 8: CU'RRl?atT A8S&-ts 

Inftntorics 

(1\$ taken. 'mlu«1 & eertiIied by Management) 

'Srock-In·Trade 

IStaru!lnd Spares 


Trad.o Rl:eelVabtu (U~d~Gooa, 

OUtstanding for period erceeding~Months 

'W~g lOr perltld JC$S than abI: Months 

CA.$ll ADD BAl'iX BJU..\l'tCU 

ill) tall an~ Caab eqnlvaleats 


M Cash iltn:ludlng: I.m.p~i} 


IBiUllt. lJdaDot. 

. lr; currentAccoUDts 


Illl OtlJct' Ba.nk B4Janec. 
- Bank [)<;poIsit, 

- With QrlgimLI maturity of more than 3 months and up to 12 monilia 
- ,.£nrnuuklld &nk Balances 
• EWlk B!'!h!ru;;elll Ml!.lu: margin mQ~£2: 9I ~~ 


- Guarantees*" 


Short-term 1.0aJ3 and. a4w.ncu 
~.Qlbom 
LoUl'!$ to ElnplQyCCIJ (SeCWTd, Conl3idlll'fi:d Qood) 

''yo Advancelll {U~. Conoidertd GoodJ 
{Recoverable iI1 Cash or in kind or value to be received} 

~............."". Cm>J!i<l.~J 
• QsM:. Autbon"tie:l 
- Qlhom 

1P2!Yl~~.1N«~.Q!W 

:>tlauCtarre:at .u..eq 


Slknt$t ~ed 011 dep<mits. Lonns and 4dV$UJ.C¢$ 


~/~UIiIExpenSC!l. 

'''''''' 
,.... 

3.~.4& 
59.83 139,,54 
59.83 3,143.02 

174,66 160.71' 

2'7.115 _ 262.94 
202:.61 423.'11 

0..06 MO 

16.34 26.31 

116.47 7.77 

3,523." 
136.63 3M.. 

.:t.':10 
1.64 ,.... 
.... 2.63 

0'" 
29,81 21.70 
$9.43 a:U4 

10.00 10,00 
7.1& 8,43 

1'7.18 18.43 

__._¥5.63 3,6S4.60 

• Rs. 2.00.000/~ 1$ not ~Iy avsiInble O!:l the same b ~ mon:e;Y for.Bank Gutu'lmtee to Bales Tax Department. 

,_,'. ;:::::~~s~:~;\_
5'~ 11",;(((7c '\ 

II~ \~. I 

\ :: \ r'~~/~~~ lfl_:/:;, 

:v~%*xww L MJW:;;:;;;;;J& !I!lMl§l&kkJii.,tos¥1Il,ilm\jfi!ilFZWi4?J;m;;&4W4 __ xu (3 ;:;;:;;;;;;g 

http:3,6S4.60
http:3,143.02


P'RP.BH 6; HEALTHY DTERPRISES LIMITED 

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 
cik: 
.............., 

PartkuIaH 31.03.2016 
AucUted 

31.03.20115 
A...... 

NO'tE 9: ~ FROM 0PERA'TtONB 
, Sale of F'resh Fruits 1,940.03 2.859'.01 
: Sale ofFrum Inputs ,... 137.98 
ISale o{CAr.tons 6.87 20.43 
ISale (If Scrap 60.66 
; Cooling CbargC$ 379.03 13l?.48 
,Automatic Sorting & Grading Maehioe Charges 7.77 
ilneotl)c from Spa.oe- for-60rting Packing Macltine LtD :, 
'income from Str8pping Mach.ine 0.15 
Bin Rental 8.52 

~dling: lru::umt; 1~.95 

Total ·~360.86 31213.76 

:"'1. The company hall' divl!Xsificd itt:l business into Qther fruits QI'lrui: from apple. The Break-up ill' roUt bdQI'r. 

:Fl"llit 31.03.~DH,i 31.03.2016 

APplC$ 1,940.03 2,751.51

""'OW 14.47 

M.... 77.12 
OreenAlmond 
Orange Wid Others 
Orapc3 J5.91 
Pon'l~ano.te 
T.... 1,940.0:) 2,8159.01 

, 

"~ 
~ 

, 

, 

f>S :" 

.:.:W.zmJ!liil,~.w~~.* ,)J .5:. .J. . •.•_~_.eMf 
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, FRE!i!R 80 !£MLTHY lIlNTERPRISES LIMITED 

NOTl!8 TO ACCQ!I1fTS 

Partlculan 

NOTEll 

Purebue. of'l'fade4 Good. 

:Swck~in~Trnde 

Stores and Spares, 

Change in lllveatorle. 

Ooeriing Stoci!; 


StOCk-in-Tmde
, 
Stores and Spares 

'. 
C. 109 Stock 

Stock-in-'l'rade 

Stores and Spares 


lnerease/(Decreasej in Inventory 

Direct Expensea 
CA store maintenance 
FrdghtExp 
Handling Expenses (Mandl} 
Handling Expenses (Re.i) 
Power&F'uel 
Testfug Exps.j Charges IConsumable Goods 
Procurement Supervis.ion Consultants, 
Water Spr(lY at Control RQQm 
Consumable Goods 
Ar'~C Fees 
1.A;..6e Rent - Plastic Bins 
Perform..ance Award -
Godown Rent (Sbirnla; 
Hiring Charges Equipment 

Total Cost , 
. 

, f~i1l~~{f.-t 'VkJ~J?: 
i \ :': 1\ .• \, .:;.:7;iil!, ,',< i. 

: ': ':>. <:;,,/.' 

31.03.2016 
Aadl..d 

- 1.39 
101.32 
102.71 

3.003,49 
139.54 

3,143.03 

-
59.83 
69.83 

3)083.20 

140.61 
2.86 
0.48 

63.46 
215.72 

0.12 
4.54 

-


-

113.71 

. 
­

-
<$41.0$0 

"7~7.41 

cie 
(.... 111...-) 

31.03.2015 
Audltod 

4.810.57 -
88.68 

4.899.25 

· 

.-~ 

· 

-

173.71 
173.'11 

3,003.49 
139.5' 

3,143.03 

12,969.3::i} 

14U50 
318.11 

1.95 
104.58 
268.22 

0.10 
73.65 

· 

45.80 

113.40 
11.98 
0.53 

-

1,139.92 

3,069.85 

51­

;m>JiWJ\lI.!>15!S:l!!4!65e&€&&;::r.:v.:;a:.~~J&Z&&W=JJJJW)?j&:M;8ii!ll~"i;i&azs;xu;;;:;:;g!8:Li.~ 

http:3,069.85
http:1,139.92
http:3,143.03
http:3,003.49
http:4.899.25
http:4.810.57
http:3)083.20
http:3,143.03
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FRESll.Oo ~TI!'f}!\!Il'..E!U'!!llIES LIMITED. cie
1i0'l'J!8 TO J\CCOY!ITj 

IRw- '" Lakhal 

Paril•.,.,. 31.o3.20U$ 31.03.2015 
Au41u,d. Au4ited 

, 
NOTS l'2::tMPLOYEES BENEFITS .EXPENSES ____.____ ---J 

Salary. AUowa.nce~ &Other Employee'" Benefits 150.85 155.69 
Contribution to cPF & FPF 12.24 12.60 
Rent for Leased Accommodation 0.38 1.10 
Employees Wel!are & Medical 9.40 13.78 
Gratuity 2.30 '7.28 
:'I'ralning Ex:pelll,cs 0.08 ;4'.18

',' 
Total 175.2$ 190.63 

~--.. .....----...-------..~~~-'-'-----I 

! 

! 

" 

, ' 

.' 
SP> 

= %2",,"'AA&&fi&iJiJi6t.&os:;;:;:;&:;Wis;.;;wzas#u@&t;;WCt.tWtttJW,lkAZiZ?!'b..,,2i!iiiil&![&ii?~~0':q:;;:;:n: 

mailto:2",,"'AA&&fi&iJiJi6t.&os:;;:;:;&:;Wis;.;;wzas#u@&t;;WCt.tWtttJW,lkAZiZ?!'b
http:FRESll.Oo
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PBB8R II HEALTHY ElfTERPRl8E8 LIMITED 

NODS TO ACCOUNTs 

31.03.2016 
Audit<l4 

cie 
1""' ..,­

31.03.:2018 ......... 
llOTB 13 =01'Dl'tIl :e:Ill"uaas 
Prlllting &I StatiODerY Exp 
'I'nl.~g I!o conve:nm~ 
1nl\'Clling & convqBnef:' ·Dit'. 
Rent OJr~8~1 RAl J.,and muI Ucenu Fee'" 
Resea.tch fit Devd¢pment Exps. 

orrlt;f:./ CAS~Ui'~gExpo. 

Ekctrieity ~Gie'4 
Repainl&~ 

- Building 
- Plant & Mw::hItltty 

Security ~8M 
Offiee Vthi&/ car Hito C~ 
Bu.meS9~t 

Postage, Tdc:pb<.mt t. Intetl'd;l 
& '-s&Periodk:ala 

Ch__ 

F'e.ILI>iWity Study Exp 

Filing Fees 
Legal ...'l'rllfeaaional Cfuuges 

Subseription & Melri'bel'Shlp F~ 

"",.,'" 

- Statutory Audit Fec 
'1"..,., At.ldi\ F~ 

" .,."'" 
>Y.. ,.eJon for OQubtful 0ebt3 
rli$c(ltru')couo Espemea

",,­

T."" 

1.51

"'.. 
25.13 

'4.... 
0.18 

"".52 
11.88 
12.21 
0.07 
5.37 
0.02 
O.OS 

0.08 
16.86 

4.% 
0.12 

73.44­
5.19 

0.87 

0.3' 
3,25 
7.15 

0." 
0;25 
0,05 

1.16 
1.71 
0.:17 

45.54 

'.92 
10,00 

~ 

2...... 
0.5

25.1'1 
0JJ

15.1
0.99 

,'n:26
i:U9 
23.1 • 
{).09.... 
'0.13' 

0.0. 
14,66

0.19 

>2." 
3.70 
5.91 

'''3 
0.51 ......... 
0.85 
0.36 
3.20 

4.35 

14.08 

'0.00, 
::173.99 

"-

iStampDuty ~ 

Agency Chllf'8'Ca·~lort 
lnsurante Premium 

Inttre:ll 
F..JChibitiQn £xps. 

Diaeount 
Adv~rtisemcnt 

Auditor'll RCmUllel'lltian 

~ 

Servrc.: Tax exp 
Property 1\1,.;11; HIUYIInB 
1'mdc Lie$nr;e 

TnuJe'Muk Fe1!" 
$w..thil ~t ew" 

Less on 6rue ofFized a.s.se!D 

Corporate Social Responsibility 
PrloIPeriod Expenses 
~lim.lrouy~w/o1J' 

. 

4 

3 
1 

' 

.1 

• 
y

:
:

Irn:lutkil ImtS gMm on JI'!.IUii': by Hsnoc LilnIted. RaJ fur 30}'!llll'!J !ram 26,03.2003, I\tf'ther expandable (<It a period or 991 
tun iOrwhich no teaM pmaiumMI$ been paid. Iu.se rmtJa@Rs.l.SOpeTo</.. mb". per month tot 66,400 6q. mtr. area (01'1 

:~~;.!~:r:~~~~!~r:::;~:~f."==~~~bT:tnwon~e:n%~~=:~~een:o;:=~~!st=1 
l~ AmOtintas per provi$ion& of Rule. 8lg & (ii)ofH.P. Iu.se Rules, 2013 ror99 yearn w.e.r. 01.08.2014. 

'? 

~~'{~;t;'4

',-.)", .. ':;: 
""""'/"1\".:;';' 

-';"~;<~':., 
,~·!:~~~;'~;!'1'j1 

.:.;< ,.f;:::';;:~~(.::-:',
;,1 ;;1' i \ (r''>~ ;A\'.! .-;' :·0("'[-: ;. 
• ' . ,.:0;"';;' ,,.,;:.. ... ~,5'\ i . •• , 1, ,' • 

. . 1. 
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,,"., .-"'''-~:-:-"''-'..'' "~'/:'A,:~':"~~;<;,,''''m_".' -' "',,_ -',-';'~' -', ',', '--;:'-~ ',: '~.,:, -'", ,,, -.::'-'~: -, ';" ":_,~, -; ..,:. ""-1 .."';. 
Fie"h& Health:v Bnterprises Llmlfed . 

NOT" 14> SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIcn:s 

A. Accounting conventJon.lit concept., 

The financial statements are prepared under the historlcal cost convention gene:m.lJy Q!l--­


aceru.al basis, in _accordance With the applkable mandato.ry Accounting stand.w:ds and­

relevant presentadonal requirements _of the Companies Act. 2013. Accounting policies not 

referred to otherwise are con$l}lterft with generally accepted accounting principles. 


B. Fixed-Assets 

(II Tangible AB••ta, . 
Fixed Assets are stated a~ eost or ~quisjtion or construction, Jess accum~ " . _',_~ _,; .' 
depreciation. Cost of acquisition is net of interest on capital advances ~d is inclusive of _. :.:,-'.':C' _ .\:~:-
frelght. duties, taxes and other incidental expenses. In respect of assets due for . ;' ;-. /, 
capitaJ.ization where 'final hills Iclaims are to be received Or passed. the capitaUiation is " ,:".:'j 
based on engineeriJ;g ea~. Final adjustments for cost and depn:ciation are ~~: .~:_,".~:o;)3~~'
retroa~ely, in ,th~ y~ of ascertainm~t of ac~al ~,st an~ finalization of ~; :,::, ~::~~':\/:,::tr~;l 
Machinexy .spares w~,~, be used only In ~onnection WIth ~ !tem of fIXed asset 849 . - ,,_.,_.-;.::' .;!,~::,,: ;:;i~>:tl~ 
whose use IS expected to be ,tn'tgular are eapita.liz.ed. ' ',"',"':. ::"~I-',' '. '/'F:'~':1
(II) mtaDgible _.ta, (Sol\varel.;t;:;~i;;;;';?;»;, 

ExpenditUre on computer,'sortWare. which is not an integral part of hardware. is capi_d : :~':;,:L~{;:.'~:·;:-':f·S; 
Q8 an intangible asaet,:Th'!,,'c~t ofsofiware includes license fee & 1mplemen~on cost '&is ,,~. ~,:-" , ' 
capitallze4- in the-year of ita unp1ementa:tion. Software is amortized over five years 

C. Bonowlng coat 

Borrowing costs attribu~le to the aeqUisitlon or construction or qualifying assets are 
capitalized as part of the ~ost of such assets and all other borrowing costs ·are charged to 
revenue. A qualifying 'asset is one that neeessnrily takes substantial period of tUne to get 
ready for intended use. 

D. Inventorle. 

Inventories we valued at cost or Net realizable value. whiehever is tower, Costs comprise an " 
costs or purchase. coats ofeonversiQn and other coots incurred in bringihg the inventories 

to their present location and conmtioll. Cost is determined on specific ide.ntiJlcation -method ,. 

for fresh fruits and F1FO method for other inventories. -., --:--~,~
, ' 

E. Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on the straight line method at the rate and in the manner provided 
in Schedule II of the Companies Aet. '2013. , 
FM Impaitment ofa..eta 

An asset is said to be impaired when the carrying amount of asset is more than the 
recoverable value of the asset. An impa.innent loss lS charged to the Profit &: Loss Account 
in the year In. which ~ asset is identified as impaired, 

G. Employee Benefit. . 

Gratuity liability to employees. is provided for on accrual basis based on valuation done by 
an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date. 

Liabill1;y for leave salary, Sick Leave and in case of medical reimbursement below supervisor 
level payable to employees is provided for on accrUal basis baa.ed on valua.tion done by an 
independent a.ctuary as at Balance Sheet date• 

. Contribution to defined contribution sc.bemes such as Provident fund & FamiI.y Pension 

Fund are cba.r&ed to Profit and Loss account as and when act:rued. 
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H. Revonue RocognJtJon: 

Sd•• 

Revenue from Sale ,of Goods is recognized when the sign.ifica.nt risk and reward of 
owneI'3hip of goods are transfcired to the customer and no significant uncertainty as to its 
determination or realization exists, 

ReuWlDcome 

Rental Income is recognized on accrual basis. 

Othetmcomo 

Revenue is recognized on acerual basis. 

1. Taxa on lncomo 

i) ProVision for current tax:is made a3 peT applicable provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. 

iiI Deferred tax is rccogni2ed. subject to the consideration of prudence on timing 
diiI'erenc:es, being the dHrerenc:e between taxable incomes and accounting income that 
originates in one period and ere capable of reversal in one or more subsequent years. 

, ~ . 
J. ProvbIlona. ContlDgent_LIabnltJea & Conthlgent A..ets: 

.. 
'." 

Provisions are reeogni%ed in respect of obligations where based on the evidence available, 
their existence on the Balance Sheet date is eonsidered probable. 

Contingent liabilities are determined on thc basis of available :i.nIormation. These liabilities 
are not provided for and disclosed by way of notes on accounts• 

. Contingent assets are not recognized in the .a.cCounts unless there are absolute certainties 
ofits reeovety in future. 

K. ~tmlnary apenaea 

Pre1imin.ru:y Expenses are amortized over a period of five yean. 

L........ 

Lease rental3 are in the nature of operating lease. 1bererore~ same are recognized 
referetice to lease terms. 

with 

If. C1Qhnt/ CoUDter-.CJ~.1 PenaJtJu/ Awant. 

Claims/ counter-cl~s/ penait;ie.l}/ aWlU'ds are ~unted fOr in the year of its settlement. 

N. ProvWon to" l>oubtf"(l1 Tnuie Rece1vable./Advauce/lJepodta 

Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables/Advances/Deposits is made when there is 
uncertainty of realization, irres-pe"ctive of the period of its dues. For dues outstanding over 
three years, fuji provision i~ made unless the amollnt is considered recoverable. 
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NOTE: 15. OTHER NOTJlS; 

1. COntingent LlAhDltiea: 
2015=16 2014-15 

i} Bank Guruantees not provided for {Rs.} 200.000/~ 200,000/­
ill carrots were stored by MIs GAPL in mEL's facility. MIs GAPL disputed the 

rental and requeeted for arbit.t'ation. FIIEL approached arbitrator to recover 
rental charge and handling charge of R6"81.16.956/~ end MIs GAPL approached 
Arbitrator fot c1aim of Rs.4,58,84.497/- on qualitJr issues. Arbitrator awarded 
Rs.87.16.956/- in favour of FHEL and Rs.80.44.497/- in favour of MIs OAPL. 
Both approached Hon'ble Hi&h Court and flled appeal against the Arbitrator 
award. The case is pending in High Court. Delhi. 

illl A Claim of Rs.53,46;837/- against FHEL bas been filed by the Growers of Shim1a 
area which is under arbitration proceeding. A counter claim of RG.l#~,98t043/· 
has also been filed by the Company. 

iv) A Claim of Rs.2,09,63,782/- plus interest@18% and return of PB an of Rs,1.25 
Crore and cost of arbitration has been filed by M/6 First Choice International 
against which a counter claim of Rs.6,65,25,603.50 plus interest and c03t of 
arbitration and permisaion to encash PB BG of Rs.l,2S'crore has been rued by 
mEL. The matter is under arbitration. 

;~26 Related party dlaclOBUl'O 
Related party disclosure 83 required under accounting standard-1S on "'Related Party 
disclosures· issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants or~ are given !'elow: 

oj Relatlo...hlp: 

i) Partlea whose control eldata 


Holding company - Container Corporation of India Ltd. 

ii} Key management pcnonnol 


Sh, Anil Kumar Gupta Chainnan 

Dr. P. AIli Rani Director 

Sh, Yashvi:U'dhan Director 

Sh. Amnd Bhatnagm­ Director 

Sh. Mohan 1.al Arora CEQ 

Sh. Umesh K, Beh1 CFO 


, Ms. Suman Lata Manager (F) & CS 

b) The fbUowlug transactio.". wel'e eanie4 out with :related party in the 01'd.lnary 
counc otbualncaa : ' 

(Amounts In lb.) 
2015-16 2014-1$ 

, i) Partiea whoae eontrol exhJta IHo14Ing Company) 

Unsecured Loan Taken Rs. 1.45,00,000 Rs.53,OO,OO,OOO 

Unsecured Loan Refunded Rs.12,89.77,383 Rs.19,42.90,OOC 

Unsecured Loan Converted into Equity Rs. NIL Rs. '7Oj OO,OO,OOO 

Intt. F:ree Unsecured Loon- Refunded Rs. NIL Rs. NIL 

Interest on Loan Its. 3,07.96,188 Rs. 6,63.35,029 

Interest: Paid Rs. 1,45,64,532 Rs, 4.01,70 j 033 

TDS Oeducte'd on Interest on Loan Rs. 30,19.624 Rs. 66.33,507 

Lease Rental of Plaatic Bins Rs. 1,13.71,070 Rs. 1,13.40,002 

Lease Rental ofPle.stic Bins Paid Rs. 1,11.43,648 Rs. 1,11.13,201 

res Deducted on·Lease Rental Rs. 2,27,422 Rs. 2,26.801 


c} Balancu at the end of tho Year 
i} Partie_ Whoae Control Exlab (HolcU:ng CoDlpany} : 

Unsecured Loan Rs. 31.45,00.000 Rs.42.69,71.383 
JnterestAccrued and Due" Rs. 11,2:2,13#736 Rs. 9,90,61,704 
Lease Rental of Plutic Bins Rs. NIL Rs. NIL 

11) Key DUlIiagom.dt penOiliulIl: IIlL NIL 

bL 
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3. Eanrlng PCI' Share 

Profit/ms after taxation as per Profit and 
Loos account (Rs.) (26,02,60,257) (14,47,31.062) 

Weighted Average number of Equity 
Shares outstanding (Nos,} 14.56.67~7:21 10.69,70.107 

Basic and dJluted _gjlo•• ·Per Share(Rs.) (1.79) (1,35) 

4. Pending issuance of Notification u/s 44lA of ~panies Act, 1956 and as no provisions 
on the matter are stated in the companies aet. 2013. no provision has been made towards 
Cess on turnover. 

5. Details of ex:pen.diture and earnings in foreign currency (in Rs.): 
. 2!!l§:16 21114'15 :' 

a) .Expenditure in Foreign CUrrency NIL "NIL 
' 

b)·Earning in Foreign Currency NIL Nl~ 

6.. Additional information required as per schedule III of comJ?B1Ues Act 2013 -:..~ 
purchase, sale and stock of main items: ..~_ 

Fnlita* 

Packing 
MaterioJ- I Amount 

.. Comll-Unption include1frecycled and 

... Purchase includes received with apple prooured. 

7. As per Aa~19, amounts charged to Profit & Loss ACC9unt in respect of opet:ating'JeWl~.· . 
for office premises and aceommodation provided to staff is Rs,25,51.712/~ (Previous Year 
Rs.26,21,543/-) against of which recovery of Rs.26,454/~ has been made (PreviOU3 Year 
Rs.71,970/~). The period of lease f1I'fiUlgetDents. varies from case to casc. 

8. The company is dealing in logistics of fresh fruits. All the activities of the company 
revolve around this business and all the operations are in India. Aa such there is no other 
reportable segment defined by Accounting Standard As-17 re1ated to segment reporting. 

9. The company has. with clTect !rom 1st April 2010. adopted Accounting ·Sta..O.dard 15, 
Employj':.C Benefits (revised 2005, issued by the Institute of Chartered 'Accountants of India, 
tCAl). The disclosures B8 required as per the above aeeount:ing standard are as under: 

(a} Defined Contribution phms:

ii Employers' contnoution to Provident Fund' 

Company pays fixed contribution to Provident Fund at predetermined rates to a' separate 

trust, 'CONCOR Employ<;ea CPF'Trust', which invests the fund in permitted securities. The 

contribution to the fund for the period is recognized as expense and is charged to profit & 

loss account. The obligation of the company is l:imited to such flXed contribution, However, 
• the b:ust is required to p~ a minimum rate of interest on contributions to the members as 
specified by Oovemment. During the year, the company has recognized the following 
amounts in the profit & losa account. 
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ii Employers' contributlon to Provident Fund ~ Rs.8.99 Lakh IJljy: Rs.9.65Iakh) 

(b) Defined Benefit Jllans: 
Gratuity: The Company has a defined benefit gratui1;y plan, which is regulated as pet the 
provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The scheme is non funded. 'the liability !or the 
same is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation. 
Le.aye Trovel Concession,: The Company provides LTC facility to its employees, which is 
regulated in accon:!ance with the policy framed in this regard. The liability for the same is 
recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation. 
Leave En!.';@;§hment and Sick l&a'l~: The Company has a defined benefit leave encashme.nt 
plan and sick leave plan for its employees. Under this plan. they are entitled to encashinent 
or earned leaves and medical leaves $ubject to certain I4nits and other conditions specified 
for the same. The liabilities towards leave encashment have been provided on the basis of 
actuarial valuation, 

, . te, SUJ:l'UltS.ri.2ed Position: 

PartJ. 
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(d) Actuarial assumptigns: Principal assumptions used for actuarial valuation (Except OPD 
& LTC for 2015-16) are: 

2915-16 2019-15 
1) Method Used Projected Unit Projected Unit 

Credit Method Credit Method 
ii) Discount Rate 8.00% 8.00% 
ill) Future Salary Increases 5.500~ 5.50% 
Sa1aIy increase tQte has been ~sumed keeping in view the inflation rate on long term 
basis. For OPD in 2015-16 the percentage increase.is 10% bued on eXpected availment of 
carried forward amount per year. )?or LTC in 2015-16 the method is benefit pa;yout based 
on policy for block 2015-18. 

t.o. During the year the company had no employee drawing remuneration equal to or more 
than the liniits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and nlles made there under. 

11. Duri.ng the year, provision for CUITCut tax is not made as the company has br.Qught 
forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation amounting to Rs.140,86 crore upto Aty 2015~ 
16 in accordance with the. provisions oflncomeTaxAc:t, 1961. 

12. Insurance Claims of Rs.8,91.065/- (Rs.3.37.545j- for transit accident of ~ple loaded 
tnlcks is pending with United India Insurance Company and Rs.5.53,520j- for transit 
accident of apple loaded tnlclts is pending with National insurance Company). 
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13. The position of SUndry Debtors is as under:­
a) Cases where Arbitration/Legal case/Appeal has been filed (Amounts as per 

Sundry Debtors): 

, 	 (i) M/s OAPL Rs.85,72,895/­
(ti) KFe Dhalli Rs.ll,78,032/­
(iii) Sanjeev Kumar Rs. 30,000/­
(iv) Tarun Kumar 	 Rs.12,65,070/­

b) Cases where Legal ru;:tion is under process (Amounts as per Sundry Debtors): 
(i) O",ineAgro (P) Ltd. Rs. 4,26,500/­
(ii) Ram Chandm & 	Sons Rs. 7,33,066/­
(iii) R.K.Brothers 	 Rs.26,63,856/­
(iv) Mahalexmi Rs.15,23.211J­

c) For five Debtors more than three year old provision of Rs.l,15,740/- have been 
made. 

14. As at 31 March 2016, the Company has carried out tax computation in accordance with 
Accounting Standard 22 - Accounting for Taxes on Income notified under the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Management is of the view. that it is not virtually 
certain to realize the deferred tax assets in the near future. "In the absence of virtual 
certainty of reliability of deferred tax assets, the deferred tax assets has been recognized ..only to the extent of deferred tax liability. The Company has taken a viev.r of Calculating i; 

Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liability from the 2011-12. The components of 
deferred taxes as at 31 March 2016 are as follows: 

, ­

, 

, 

Particulars 

Deferred tax.liabW 
Excess depreciation as per Income tax Act, 1961, over 

As at 31et March 2016 

7,78,87,425 
depreciation as per books (a) 

Total 
Deferred tax. allsets 

Excess depreciation as per books, over 

7,78,87,425 

-
depreciation as ner Income tax Act 1961 
Provision for gratuity 
Provision for LTC 
Provision for Leave Encashment 

Provision for Sick Leave 

Broucltt forwiu:d lOSSeS and unabsorbed depreciation 

Total 

Recognition ot deterred tax. asaeta to the extent of 

Defcrn:ld tax lJabWty (b)'" 

Net deferred tax a.aeta/lllabWty) [(a)-Ib)) 

129808 
12174 

2,68,449 

(3,35,861) 

5181 16891 

51,81,91,461 

7,78,87,425 

Nil 

A DTA is recognized-only to the extent of DTL keeping in view of changed strategy as per 
view of management in this regards. 

15. In respect of Micro, Small and Mcdium Enterprise, no amount is pending as at the 
Balance Sheet date. 

16. The impact of pay revision in respect of security expenses etc. will be accounted for on 
receipt of claims_ 

17. In the oplDlon of the management, during the year there are no indications that 
impairment of any asset tJ-as taken place. Accordingly, no provision for impairment of assets 
is required as per Accounting Standard 28. 
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ut As per Accounting Standard 29. the pa:rticulan are as under: 

_cuI&iS-' 

lI. 
~ 

Gratuiti and kav. 
--~-~-'~ 

19. a): Unless Otherwise stated. the f'lgUreS are in La:khs. 
b) Previous year's figures have been recut/regrouped/rea:rranged wberever considered 
necessary to confirm 10 compliance with revised Scbedule~l1L 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO 

THE MEMBERS OF 

MIs FRESII & ilEALTIlY ENTERPRISES LIMITED 

1. Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited Ihe accompanying standalone financial statements of FRESH & 
HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance 
Sheet as at 31st March, 2016. the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the signifieant accounting policies 
and other explanatory intbrmation_ 

2. Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Stntements 

The Company's Board of Direetors: is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) 
ofthe Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act,j) with respe<:t to the preparation and presentation 
of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fuir view of the financial 
position. tinancial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally ae<:epted in Indiu, including the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section J33 of the ACl~ read wilh Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

This reSpOnsibility also includes maintenance of ad~quale accounting records jn 
accordane~ with the provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and deteeting fmuds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and [air view and are frtte from material misstalement. whether 

due to fraud or error. 
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3. Auditor~s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based 
on OUf !:ludit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act. the accounting und auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audil report under the 

provisions of the Act and the Rules made tbere under Wid the Qrd"r under Section 
143(11) oftne AcL 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act Those Standards require thal we comply with ethical 
requiremeuts and plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable WiSUfWlCe about 
whether the fimmcini statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves perfonning procedures to oblain audit evidence a.bout the amounts nnd 

the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor's judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, wbelher duc to rraud Of errOf. In making those risk assessments, the 

auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the 
financjal statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in thc circumstances. 

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of thc accounting policies used and 

the reasonableness of the o.ccounting estimates made by thc Company's Directors. as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

Wc believe that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and npproprillte to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the stnndalone firumci~l statements. 

4. Opinjon 

In our opinion and to the best of our infonnation and nccording to the explanations given 

to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statement'> give the infonnation required by the 
Act in the matUler so required and give a true and f."lir view in confonnity with the 

""" 
;~ -"" !". 

61 

~Jil&iIlB&ii!Z.~~;;'~{MW:"&&* iiiUI6J\I\i :S&%Z1&&!J:iJWI&liJY.\ii<!",w.,.:a",",,,,,,,*,,,,,,,,,,,.'<'__ 

mailto:TOCQllil.iJslio{@gml111.com


}lnil}lslio/tcst }lssociates ra\'j 
4117, lit PCoor; 
Jfa:ya'iJtv:.ar, <[)elli."11(}{)()6 

CfiarterotfJf.CCDUIItu.lIts <PflOne : 011-23962062, 23923496 
. . 'Fa.( : 011-23911438---_. 'F.-mai{ : roc,a.it:asr"'Ii..~iJf1Ulj!com 

I.Iccounting principles generally accepted in India~ of the slate of affairs of the Company 

as at 3 I st March. 2016 and its loss and its eash flows: for the year ended on that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1') . 	 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ('lhe Order') 

issued hy the Centrol Government ofIndia in terms of subwsectioll (11) of section 
143 of (he Aet, we give in the Annexure B. a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, 

ii) 	 A,..;:. required by Seetion 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) 	 We have sought and obtained ail the infonnation and explanations which to the best 
ofour knowledge and beliefwere necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(h) In 	our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss. and the Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid fil1aru;iaJ statemelU!) comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Aet, rend with Rule 7 ofthe Companies 
(Accounts) Rules. 2014; 

(e) On 	the basis of the written representations received from the directors a'i on 31st 
March) 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31 st March, 20 i6 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Se<:tion 164 (2) of the Act. 

(t) 	With respect Lo the lldcquacy ofthe internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and thc operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in "Annexure A.... Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the com~y~s internal financial control over financial 
reporting: 

(g) With respecl tn the other malters lo be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 
to the best ofour information. nnd according to the explanations given to us: 

'. .~;,.;\:\'-. 	 -: "". " 
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i. 	 The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on ils financial 
position in its financial statements: 

ii. 	 the Company did nol have nny long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iv. - there has been no delay in transferring amounts. required to he transferred to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

4.1 	Emphasis of Matters 

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial stntements: ­

A) 	Nott: 15(13) to the financial statem~nt, in respect of sundry deblors. there is 
uncertainty reluted to the outcome o[ the lawsuit filed aguinst variQus :rundry debtOfli. 

B) Note 2 in the financial statement which indieates that the Company has accumulated 

losses ilnd its Net Worth has been substantially erodcd~ the Company has incurred a 
net Loss I net Cash loss during the eurrent year and previous yenr(s) and, the 

Company's current liabilities exceeded its current asscts as at the balance sheet date, 
These conditions: indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that east significant 
doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a tt.0ing concem. However, the 

fmancja1 statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis for 

the reasons stated in the said Note. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Compliance of Directions issucd undcr' section 143(5) of Companies Act, 2013 
issued by the office of the Comptroller and Auditor General of lDdla. 

Ohservation on the directions is..~ued hy the ofl-'iee of Comptroller and Auditor 

General of Tndia uJs 143(5} of Companies Act. 2013 have been annexed by way of 
Annexure C ofl11i5 report. 

For Anil Ashok & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN N0G),77N •. " 
• · I,'.~. '\",..,if \ 

~. ,,·.·~,'l,M 
(Vijay~ ')/ 

Place: New Delhi Partner 
Dated: (71h May 2016 M.No. 097963 
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Annexure "A" to the Auditor's Report of Fresh and Healthy Enterprises Limited 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub~section 3 of Section 143 
l)fthe Companies Actt 2GB ("the Act1

') 

We have nudited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Fresh and Healthy 


Enterprises Limited (>lthe Company") as of31 Mareh 2016 in conjunction with our <Judit of the 


standalone financial statements of the Company for the yeaI' ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible tor establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based, on the internal control over financiaJ reporting criteria establisbed by 'the 

Company considering the essential components of inlernal control staled in tbe Guidance Note I 
~ on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 


Chartered Accountants of India (,ICAr). Thew rcsponsibilitie::; include thc design. 


implementation and mwnlenuncc of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 


cficctively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, ineluding adberence to 


company's policies. the safeguarding of its assets. tbe prevention and detection of frauds and 


errors, the <leeuracy and completeness of the accounting records" and the timely preparation of 


reliable financial informution. as required under the Companies ACl~ 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

finaneial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in aecordance with the GUldance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") 

and tbe Standards on Auditing, issued by leAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

comrols. both applicable lO ao audit of Internal Financial Controls and. both issued by the 

Institute ofChartered Accountants oflndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform tbe audit to obtain reasonable 

,--:- ,\'. 
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assurance about whether ~dcquate intema1 financial controls over financial reporting was 

established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in aU material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequaey of the 

internal ~nancial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. OUf 

audit of internaJ fmandaI controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 

of intemal financial controls over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 

on the assessed rjsk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. including the 

assessment of the risks ofmateriat misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

orcrrOr. 

We believe thai the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on tile Company's internal financial CQntro~s system over finuneial 

reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial comeol over fmancial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reponing and the preparation of 

financial statements for external purposes in accordance ..vith generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company's internal nllancil11 control over Onancial reporting includes those policies 

and proccdures that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detuil~ accurately 

and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to pennit preparouon of 

financial statements in 3ccOrul:lllCC with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in acCordance with authorisations 

of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of WI authorized acquisition~ use, or disposition of the company1s 

assets that could havc a material effect on the financial statements. 
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. . 
- . . . 

13 . . 

tisa JIii!iIh••jMI~~J;3&iU&&i;MX$iS..'St 

mailto:roc.oJli(iufw!t@omaiCOJ1Ii


~---', 
411'0 1# 'Ewar,Jilni{Jilsliote1,Jilssociates fNo.ya <Bazar, <DetJi,cII0006(AiCfiartenuf)fccountanl$ lPfi.o1Je : 011-23962062, ;13923496 I ! , , 

'- f !1'a;c : 011-23911438 
<£-maiC: roc.anitiufiof(@gmailcom 

lnherent Umitations of lnternaI Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the irulerent limitations of internal financial oontrols over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also) projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to fulure periods are subject 

to the risk !hat the internal financial control over _financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions. or thal the degree of compliance with the policies or 

procedures may deteriorate. 

Opiniun 

1n our opinion, the Company has, in aU material respecfs, un adequate internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial repOrting 

criteria estabJished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India. 

For Anil Ashok & A~sociatc..o;; 

Chartered Accountants 

FRNNO~177N 
'-.-.- '.,'/' \ A 'fCf,,"~'

~~.._·,-_l·,:, 
, .•...•C-: ••!: 

(Vijay Kumar Singal) 
Place: New Delhi I t artncr 
Dated: 17'" May 2016 M,No, 097963 
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The Annexure-B referred to in paragraph 4(i) of our report of even date to the members of 

FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED on the stand.lone finonci.1 'tatemen", 

of the company for tbe year ended 31M March, 2016. 

We report that: 

LA) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including 
quantitative details and situation offlxed ilSsctS. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by 
which all the fixed assets are verified annually. In our opinion. Ihis periodicity of physical 
verification 1s reasonable having regard to the size of the Cornpuny and the nature of its 
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed upon such verification during the yea.. 

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties. which are held in thc ruune of company as at the 
baJance sheet date. are held in the name ofcompany_ 

2, 	 (a) As explained to us. Inventory has been physically verified by the management as at 31 
March 2016, 

(b) In our opinion and according to the informstion and explanations given 10 us, the 
procedures of physical verification of inventories foHowed by the management are 
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business. 

(c) In our opinion and on the basil' of our examination of the records. the Company is 
generally maintaining proper reeords of its inventories. No material discrepancy was noticed 
on physical verification of stocks by the management as compared to book records. 

3, 	 Aecording to the infonnatjon and explanatlon given to us> the Company has not granted any 
loans. secured or unsecured~ to companies. finns or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 oftbe Act 

4. 	 The oompany has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any '!';ecuri~y 01 

made any investment covered under section 185 and 186 ofCompanies Act ,2013. 

S. 	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as defined in section 73 and 76 
ofthe Companies Act 2013 

6. 	 The company is not required to maintain cost records under subsection (1) ofSection 148 of 
the Act. 
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7, 	 (a) According to the information and explanntions given to US~ no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of Income tax, Service tax, Provident Fund. Employees State Insurance, 
and other malerial statutory dues were in arrears as a1 31 March 20 J6 for a period of more 
lhan six months from the date they became payable, 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income 
tax or Sales Tax or Service tax or duties of excise or value added tax or cess and other 
material statulory dues which have not been deposiled by the Company on account of 
disputes. 

(c) There was no amount which was due for transfer to Investor education and protection 
fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies ACl, 1956 (1 of 1956) and 
rules made there under. 

8. 	 In our opinion and according to the infonnation and explanation given to us the Company 
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to {he financial institutions, banks 
and Government and dues to debenture holders. 

9, 	 The Company has not raised moncy by way of initial pubJic offer or further public offer( 
including debt instrument) and Term loans during the year hence clause 9 ofCARO 2016 is 
nol applicable. 

10. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company 
by its officer or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

11. No Manugerilll remuneration trns been paid during the year in contravention to the provision 
ofseetinn ) 97 read with Schedule V to the AcL 

12. The Company is nol 	a Nidhi Company, Consequently. requiremenis of clause (xii) of 
paragruph 3 of the CARO 2016 are not applicable. 

13. To the besl of our knowledge lln.d belief and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 117 and 
1.88 of the Act where applicablc and the details have. been disclosed in 100 Financial 
Statements ete. as required by the applicable accounting Standards. 

14. To lhe best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 

share or fully or partly convertible debentures during the YCllI under review, consequently, 
requiremenl'i of cla';t'it {xiv) of paragraph 3 ofthe CARO 2016 are not applicable. 

1..6 	 · ..~•.. "Y' 
. "-- -- :. 

- ;. 

;;w: .go.,."" !&;;a:znGh@z&G1&2&l&CWCbW ~ia.'&M.: Ye, 1;,22?'h' au M. 04APll@5jijijiW$bWM;;:;;aw.;;;WJi) 

mailto:04APll@5jijijiW$bWM;;:;;aw.;;;WJi
mailto:roc.a'~ifasfi()K..@8mair


4117, 1S1. q,"(.oor;}lni[ )ls/io/t d )'lssociates 1V"Ya <)JlZZa" <DelJii-110006 
Cfiartere4fl.=untants Phone: 011-23962062, 23923496!a\1 

, 	 1',,-\: : 011-23911438 
P.-nrni{: rtu:.iwifirs!io!{fivomni[com 

15. To the best of our k.nowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations: 

given to us, the Company has not entered into any non cash transactions Vlith directors or 
persons connected with him_ 

16. To t~ best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations 
given fo us, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 4SIA of the Reserve 

Bank o[Jndi. Act, 1934. 

For Anll Ashok & Associates 
Chnrtcred Accountants 

FRNNO.~7N_,..;.~ .
~v!rA..\,. 

..--....., J i ~t~.!t},;c- I '.•" 


': ~ --.: v':~ ! ) ~:' 

(Vijay Kumar Singal), .-:;:;".: '. 


Place: New Delhi 	 Partner --­
Dated: 17~ May 2016 	 M.No. 097963 

,1­

$1l29& U\ _h';nu~_ WiII,- frMd§ ~,Si*S~e,; k i;, ,stM 



.-- ~~-.~-~---
4117, 1" 'FWor;jlnil}lslio~ Itl jlssociates 

-\ 

Vn 
:NaY" (1Jazar, <DeUii-11()()()6 

C/iarternl'Jtccmmtants rAI rP~o,", : 011-23962062, 23923496. 
j 'F~ : 011-23911438 

.~~~--.-~. 

<E-tnai{ : roc.anifruliof(,@gmoif.com 

Annexure C to the audit report to the Fresb & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. 

RepOrt as per sub-direction Ills 143(5) of the Companies Act. 2013. 

i8.-rDircctinns------ ~hservations --.--~~-, 

I~o. ! If the company has been selected to II The company has not been selected t~ 
I disinvestment. a complete status report in tenns : disinvestment. 

of vaJualion of Assets (including intangible 

assets (lnd lund) and Liabilities (including 

Committed & general Reserve) may be 

examined including the mode and present :rtagc 


~fdisjn~1E!~~______~ _._~_~~~_______ 
I 2 I ~lease report whclht:r there arc any caSC5 of i There is no such case of W'diver/write QIT of 

- waiver/write off of debes/loans, interest. if YCS'f;ebtslIoans, interest in the company. 
,.~~ j Ihe reasql.!!.there fOL~nd the 81]10UO[ invofveiJ.,._ 

Whether proper records are maintained fer 
inventories lying with third parties & assets 
received as gift from Govt. or other authorities. 

[ 3 

) I 
4 A report on age-wise analysis (If pending 

legaVarhittation cases including the reasons of 
pendency nnd exislenceJeffectiveness of a 
monitoring mechanism for cxpt;ndlturc on oU 11. 
cases (foreign and local) may be given 

___.___ 
There are no inventories of the company lying 
with third parties & in respect of as..;;e(s received 
from NaHanal Horticulture Board the required 
details as per the nature & size of the business 

are maintained. --i 
Age-wise analysis of pending legal/arbilration 
cases: 

Less thart 1 year 
(2 cases) 

ClaimWHEL 
Rs. 6,77,90,6131- + cneashment of SO of 
Rs. 1.25 crores 

eJ,Qim pC party 

Rs. 2,09,63.782/- + release of 8G of Rs. 

1.25 Ci'Orcs 

1-.3 Veu", 
(3 Ctlscs) 

lliimJ!yJ~~H~ 

Rs.I,8I,06,075/­

Claim of mn1x 
Rs.53.46,8371­

_______~--L~_~,~_, -.J 

'~........ 
.. '0 . 
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More than 3 yean: 
(1 case) 

Claim by FHEL 
Rs.87,16,956/­

Claim or party 
Rs.4,58,84,4971­

2. Expenditure on legal Cll:,es is being 
governed as per Schedule of Prices (SOP) 
and Delegation of Powers (GOP) being 
issued from time to time. In view of this,. 
we observed that there is adequale 
mechanism for monitoring of expenditure 
011 all legal cases. 

3. Legal eases are pending before different 
31.1lhorilies in their ordinary course of 
judiciary proceedings. 

:For AnH Ashok & Assocjates 
Chllrtered Accountants 

FRNNOQ77N .. :~_ ,(•. 
';<~~ h~YI\~" 

....,'. '~"'j). 
1 .,. • '" • 

~'~.'" .­

(Vijay Kumar Singal) 
Place: New Delhi Partner 
Dated: Ii" May 2016 M.No. 097963 
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Annexure C to tbe audit report to the Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. 

Report as per sub-direction uls 143(5) of the Companies Act, 20 13 

(fn pursuance 10 Ihe direction Iluyear :2015-16) 

!S. !Dircc~ns·~·~~-·~· ·~·-·ybse.rvati;ns-~··-··-·· l 
N" . 

Whether the company has clear litle/lease deeds Yes. However. in' respect ~f Leasehold land ~I~ J. ,fir freehold and leasehoJd land respectively? If RAI> Sonipat. Lease Deed is in the name of "0( 

not please state the area of freehold and holding company Le. Container Corporation of 

leasehold land for which title/lease deeds are not India Limited. 

available. 


2 I Whether triere are any casesofwaiverlwrite off I There is no such case of waiver/write off of, 
of debtslloansl interest, ifyes. the reasons there 
for and the amount involved. 

I Whether proper records-are maintained~ibr 
inventories lying with third parties & assets 
received as gift! grant(s) from Govt. or other 
authorities. 

L-.L~._~~~.~_~_~_~~_ 

Place: New Delhi 

DlIted: 17'" May 2016 


' deb1slloan~ interest in the company. !! 
There areno' in;entor~ of the company lying 
with third parties & in respect ofassets received ! 

from National Horticulture Board the required 
details as per the nature & size of the business 
are rnain~!!!~~_~~~ 1 

For Ani! Ashok & Assodates 

Cbartere~ Accountants 


FRN~5177N ... ~:'! i)~~-- !;' .-~' 
. /'"\' ".' .

v' .r- , .­
(Vijay~
Partner 

M.No. 097963 
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA 
UNDER SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF FRESH & HE'ALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016. 

The preparation of financial stalements of Fresh and Healthy Entr.rprises Limited for the year 

ended 31 March 2016 in aeeordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the 

Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the company. The Statutory 

Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the 

Act is responsible for expressing opinion on these financial $latements under Section 143 of the 

Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under 

section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report 

dated 17 May 2016. 

I, on behalf of the :::':omptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct the 

supplementary audit of the financial statements of Fresh and Healthy Enterprises Limited for the 

year ended 31 March 20 I 6 under section 143 (6) (a) of the Act. 

For and on the behalfofthe 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India 

--'-, 

~- -r ,~(~:~es:~~~':~ "'~. 
Place: New Delhi Principal Director of Andit 
Dated:IUune.2016 Railway Commcrcial, New Delhi 
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FRESH & HEALTIIY ENTERPRISES LTD. 
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of CONCOR) 
Regd. Office: CONCOR Bhawan, C - 3, 

Mathura Road. 

Opposite ApollQ Hospital, 

New Delhi - J10076. 

Ph. No. 011-41673093,94,95, & 96 

Fax: 01l·4J67J112 

Website: '\yww)hel.coJu 


OFFICE 

CA STORE CUM OFFICE 

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. 

CAStore, 

HSIDC, Rai, 

Sonepat -131029 
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